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2 

3 (Transcript follows in sequence from VolUJDe XIX.) 

4 

5 

6 CROSS EXAMINATION 

7 BY MR. PALECXI: 

8 Q Mr. Pollock, are you aware that the local 

9 facility charge for auppleaental service which is 

10 proposed by Gulf in this case is not projected to 

11 collect any revenue in the teat year? 

12 A By •auppleaental ae.rvice," you're referring 

13 to the standard tariffs, the LPT, PXT tariffs? 

u 

15 

16 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yea, air. 

~·•· I'• aware of that. 

Wouldn't this be an ineffectiv$ locel 

17 facilities charge? I aean if it collects no revenue, 

18 we might as we will not have it? 

19 A Well, as I understood the proposal, the locz l 

20 facilities charge option was to collect the minimum 

21 a.mount of recovery from the customers. So, if the 

22 customer was using capacity at lesa than 80\ of the 

23 capacity required to aaintained, then a local 

24 facilities charge would kick in to provide that 

25 
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1 additior.al revenue. 

2 But the fact that the charge itself is not 

3 providing any revenue doesn't mean that there aren't 

4 any revenues being recovered ror loca! !acilities 

5 coats, because those coats are built into the rates, 

6 the demand charges. 

7 Q Under the position that you espouse in your 

8 testimony, it a cogenerator always bought energy and 

9 capacity to replace capacity that normally was 

10 generated by his own generators, could he sign up for 

l l zero standby capacity and not pay any reservation 

1 4! charge at all? 

13 A The key word there is "normally." In some 

14 circumstances it's conceivable that there are so many 

15 infinite number of operating states that no one knows 

16 how to define "norm.lll." And especially if the 

17 arrangement is new, it's not clear that you ::an arrive 

H at a number that reflects normality. 

Q Well, wouldn't this be a loophole in your 

20 system, in you.r particular -- the system you espoused, 

21 that it the c .ogenerator claimed that he normally 

2 2 generated this energy and capacity with his own 

2J generators, ho could sign up tor the zero standby, pay 

24 zero reservation charges. It seems that that's a 

25 serious loophole in your position. 
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Not at all. In fact, the position that we're 

2 recommending would clear up that loophole. The problem 

3 is, and the loophole is created by the fact that 

4 standby power requirements are n~t determined in 

5 refe.rence to the actual deaand imposed by the customer 

6 in relation to the customer's supplementary or full 

7 requirements deaa.nd. 

8 And if you inplemented the demar.d provisions 

9 ot standby service, where you calculate the additional 

10 capacity required by the customer in excess of that 

11 customer'• supplementary power requirement, you, in 

42 fact, are zeroing in on exactly the amount of 

13 additional demand that the customer is imposing because 

14 of forced or scheduled outages. 

15 Q Referring to Issue 158, the issue concerning 

16 cogenerators, under your position if a customer's 

17 generator was experiencing a forced outage, could he be 

18 billed on the SE rider rather than en the standby rAte 

19 schedule if the custoaer has another generator with 

20 which he could generate the kilowatt hours and 

21 capacity, but just chooses not to do so for economic 

22 reasons? 

23 I haven't thought through that; I really 

24 don't know. 

25 CHArRMAN WILSON: Would you go t hrough that 
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2 MR. PALECKI: Yea. 

2908 

3 Q (By Mr. Palecki) If a customer's generator 

4 were experiencing a forced outage , and I'm asking this 

5 question under the position thAt you espouoed in your 

6 testiaony, could he be billed on the SE rider rather 

7 than on the standby service rate schedule , if that 

8 custoae.r had another generator with which he could 

9 generatA the kilowatt hours in capacity, but simply 

10 chooses not to do so for economic reasons? 

11 A I don't think so, unless the customer's total 

12 demand exceeded his supple .. ntary demand. 

13 Q I'd like to ask you the same question, but 

14 rather than being a forced outage, we have a scheduled 

15 outage for aaiutenance. 

16 A Again, as long as the customer is not 

17 imposing any more demand on the utility, than ne can 

18 impose under his suppleaentary contract, there would be 

19 no additional SE power sold to that customer. In other 

20 words, the SE would only kick in at levels above the 

21 customer's supplementary demand. 

22 CHAIRMAN WILSO~: Is your scenario where a 

23 custoaer has two generating units? 

24 

25 

MR. PALECKI: That's correct . 

CHAIRMAN WILSO~: One of them goes down under 
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1 a planned outage and there's an arrangement to buy SE 

2 energy, because it's been planned and arranged with the 

3 utility. 

4 

5 

MR. PALECKI: That is correct. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: And then he chooses, also, 

6 not to .run the other generator? 

7 MR. PALECIU: The other generate could just 

8 be a generator that -- let's say it's antiquated, it's 

9 there on the premises, and it's just being used tor 

10 this purpose, siaply so the customer can avoid the SE 

11 rider -- or, excuse me, avoid the standby service rate. 

12 WITNESS POLLOCX: Let ae clarity som.athinq. 

13 I think that under that situation, it a customer 

14 continued to operate his plant, the generator was down, 

15 he would still b.ave to have the steam. It j t was a 

16 boiler outage, he would still have to have the steam to 

17 operate the plant. It he has the steam to operate the 

18 plant, then he's also got the steam to operate the 

19 other generator . So it probably would not be 

20 economical under those circumstances to take the second 

21 generator down, becau.se be's got a steam requ 1 rement 

22 that has co be met. It it's a quick turbine outage or 

23 a trip ot that nature, then the customer would probably 

24 opt just to abed a load, not impose a higher demand on 

25 the utility. 
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(By Mr. Palecki) Would it be possible tor a 

2 customer to maintain a generator, let's call it a dummy 

3 generator? I aean, the thing could be cranked up, he 

4 could get it to work, but the only pu.rpose it's there 

5 tor, ia ao that he says he has a standby generator and 

6 he can avoid the standby charges. And he can choose 

7 not to run that generator purely tor economic reasons 

8 but avoid the standby charges under your scenario. At 

9 least that's what it appears to me. 

10 A Well, I guess -- I'a having trouble following 

11 the question, but it's not a question ot avoiding the 

12 standby charges. You pay tor atandby based upon the 

13 amount of service which you feel you need, and a 

14 cuatomer can operate -- and this customer did operate 

15 tor many year& ~ith a much lower supplementary contract 

16 without any standby power. But it a customer feels 

17 that more standby power is needed, that customer can 

18 choose to. And under the rates, it he decide s not to 

19 operate that generation and not to shed load ~nd impose 

20 higher th.an hia contract requirement, that contract 

21 requirement ratchets upward. So you can avoid it. You 

22 can cost .oinimize and not stand by for each and every 

23 one of your generating units. But, or course, you're 

24 takin.g a risk, and there's a cost/benefit t o be made, 

25 analysis that would have to be ma de, to determine the 
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1 riek of not eigninq up tor enough standby power. It's 

2 like and Maybe thie ie not a totally par;•llel 

3 analoqy: If you have an old car, you're lees likely to 

4 want collision daJIAqe :)n it because it's not worth 

5 anything to aaintain. You're going to ta~e the risk 

6 that you'll be in a collision and have to pay a very 

7 high deductible or pay the ~igh coat, or you just 

8 decide to get rid of the car. 

9 Q Ie Ieeue 158 only -- which is the Industrial 

10 Intervenor•' ieeue, ie that only u request to be 

11 allowed to uee SE in periods when the customer is not 

12 experiencing a forced outage or scheduled outage ot any 

13 of his generators? We'll call that a scheduled outage 

14 tor aa i ntenance ot any ot hie generators . 

15 MR. McWHIRTER: Would you repeat that 

16 question, pleaee? 

17 Q Ie the Industrial Intervenors' Issue 1 58 only 

18 a request to be allowed to use SE in periods when the 

19 customer is not experiencing a torced outage or a 

2~ scheduled outage tor aaintenanc e ot any ot hi& 

21 generator•? (Pause) 

22 A Generally, yea. It's whenever a customer has 

23 the option of backing ott ot generation that would 

24 otherwise operate under the circuastances that is less 

25 efficient. When I say • generally,• yes , I can see that 
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1 there might be circuastances that a uni t might be down, 

2 but the custoaer may be compensating in his plant by 

3 removing equivalent amount ot load to co•pensate tor 

4 that situation. 

5 

6 

Q 

A 

What are those circumatancea7 

Well, for exaaple, it a small turbine does go 

7 down and the cuatoaer would otherwise impose a higher 

8 de•and, rather than do that a customer could shed load. 

9 A custo•oer has the capability ot shedding load, and 

10 under those circuastances there is no standby power 

11 being purchased by that cuato~r, under those 

12 circumstances. He could , however, under theSE 

13 cirCUJilStances, be using leas efficient generation to 

14 •eet h is internal needs and, therefore, it would make 

15 economic sense tor hi•, it SE vas available, to back 

16 ott of that less efficient generation. 

17 So I think the custo•er would have to 

18 demons trate that there vas an outage, that there was 

19 so .. load reduction that corresponded, o r some step 

20 reduction load to correspond with that outage. But I 

21 think •oat ot the ti•es when I answer, generally 

22 speaking, •ost ot the ti•e• it would be in 

23 circu.stances wheN the customer was operating less 

24 efficient g e neration, si~ly trying to displace that 

25 less efficient generation. 
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1 0 Were you here durinq Mr. Kiala'a testimony 

2 yesterday? 

Yes, in body. 3 

4 

A 

0 What about Mr. Kisla's circumstance with the 

5 Stone Container Company? 

6 A Well, Stone Container Company is a good 

7 example of how you cannot oversimplify the way 

B customers use standby power. I think that my 

9 understandinq of his operation is that he would just as 

10 soon not use qeneration to provide his own requirements 

11 becaus e it costa 1ta own extra money, it requires them 

12 to use condenainq qeneration, which is much less 

13 efficient than cogeneration, and therefore you've got 

14 essentially the stem requirements goinq up in the 

15 atmosphere rather than being used sequentially in the 

16 papermakinq process. 

17 What they would like to do is optimize their 

18 qeneration to aoae extent, if it's available, by buying 

19 cheaper enerqy fro~ the utility and not generat i~g less 

20 efficiently and ventinq steam into the atmosphere. 

21 0 We'll move on to another issue . 

22 Do )'OU use near-peak demands based on the 

23 system's 71 hiqhest peak hours to allocate production 

24 and transmission plant in your Cost of Service Study ? 

25 A Yes, th.at's the tesult of applying 5t 
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1 threshold to define the hours that are close to the 

2 peak period. 

3 Q I'd like to refer you to Exhibi t 601, which is 

4 Gulf's Revised Reaponac to St aff 's Thir~•~nth Set ot 

5 Interrogatories. I'a not sure that I have a copy ot 

6 that. 

7 

8 

CHAIRMAN WILBON: Did you say 601? 

KR. PALECKI: Ye•, 601 

9 Q (By Kr. Palecki) I'd like to refer you t o 

10 Part c, which is the sua of the deaands o f each class 

11 of the Utility's 71 bigheat ayatea peak h ours in 1987 . 

12 A I have that, y ... 

13 Q •:ould we divide these values by 71 t o arr i ve 

14 at an eatiaate of your adjusted near-peak demands as 

15 shown on Page 1 of Schedule 8 ot your preti led 

16 testiaony? (Pause) Bear with ae a aoment , please . 

1 7 (Pause) 

18 A Yea, you could have . These are at the meter 

19 level, I believe. 

20 Q Now, the data ira the interrogatories is based 

21 on the nonaigration scenario ot six c ustomers in PXT, 

22 correct? 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

Yea, that's ay understanding. 

Is your estimate of the near-peak aemands 

25 baaed on 1987 data reflecting tour c ustomers in PXT and 
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1 1990 kilowatt hou.ra baaed on six customers ot PXT? 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

A That's correct, yea. 

Q Would you aqree that the estimate ot the 

near-peak deaanda, using the data in Ex.hibit 601, is 

more appropriate because the d a ta tor both 1987 and 

1990 1a baaed on six customers in PXT? 

A I aa not sure exactly it the 1987 data wa s 

8 baaed on the four customer• or the six customers. You 

9 Say it's based on the six customers, that's a little 

10 different than the understanding I had as tar as the 

11 Company's ability to generate the hourly load data for 

12 the class. 

13 Q Is your ectiaate of the near-peak da.ands for 

14 standby service baaed on 10\ of standby capacity being 

15 used in each of the 71 highest system peak hours? 

16 

17 

A 

Q 

Yea, it is. 

Did you use the revenue calculated by the 

18 Company for the standby service class? 

19 

20 

A 

Q 

Yes, I did. 

Is the Coapany's calculation of the standby 

21 service revenue baaed on the assumpt ion that in some 

22 months standby service custoaers would require standby 

23 service for more than lOt of the time? If you don 't 

24 have the inforaation, I would just like to ask you to 

25 assume that the Coll.pany's calculation is based on that 
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1 assuaption, that in some months standby s e rvice 

2 customers would require standby eervice tot more than 

3 lOt of the tiae. 

4 It's hard to tell !rom the information the 

5 Company provided what percentaqe of the t.ime, because 

6 the Co•pany '• nuabera don't ahov you the actual 

7 outaqes by aonth !or various customers. 

8 Q What if the Coapany' ~ calculations were based 

9 on that assumption, would the rate of return tor 

10 standby service --

11 MR. McWHIRTER: I'm qoinq to object to the 

12 ~1eation on the qrounds that he's basinq the question 

13 on an assumption of !acts that are not in the record. 

14 I! you can refer us to testiaony in the record that 

15 supports that proposition, then I thinlt the question 

16 would be proper. 

17 MR. PALECKI: This is a hypothetical question. 

18 We could probably !in.d the ex.act information in the 

19 record, but I think we're allowed to ask an expert 

20 witness a hypothetical. 

21 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Let me hear what the 

22 hypothetical is aqain. 

23 MR. PALECKI: We've asked him to assume that 

24 the Coapany's calculation o! standby service revenue is 

25 based on the assumption that in some months standby 
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1 service customers would require standby service !or 

2 more than 10\ of the time. His previous testimony was 

3 that his estimate of thd near-peak deaands !or standby 

4 service was based on 10\ ot standby capacity being used 

5 in each of the 71 highest system peax hours . 

6 CHAIRMAN WILSON: And your hypothetical is 

7 what, now? 

8 MR. PALECKI: W• asked him that, basically, 

9 the Coapany's calculation of the standby service 

10 revenue ia based on the assumption that in some months 

11 standby service custo ... ra would require standby service 

12 for aore than lOt of the tiae. 

13 MR. McWHIRTER: I think the problem is that 

14 he's aixing a fact question with a h~othetical 

15 question. He's saying that the !igures that you have 

16 in the record that are pres~nted by the Company make an 

17 assumption aa to those figures that may or may no t 

18 exist. If he can give us a hypothetical that's a true 

19 hypothetical, then I would object to that. 

20 MR. PALECKI: Perhaps I could rephrase that 

21 question to Mr. Pollock. 

22 Q (By Mr. Palecki) Mr. Pollock, would you 

23 accept, subject to check , that the Company 's 

24 calculation of standby servic e revenue is based on t he 

25 assumption that in some months standby serv i ce 
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1 customers would require standby servic·J tor more than 

2 10\ of the time? 

3 MR. McWHIRTER: Mr. Chairaan, I am going to 

4 object to a question •subject to c};qc!;..• That's 

5 something that ha• been used over the years with this 

6 Commis•ion but, frankly, to me it doesn't make sense 

7 because what if he checks on ic later on and finds out 

8 that that'• a fallacious fact? How is that 

9 communicated to you? How does it get into the record? 

10 CHAlRMAN WILSON: I've always wondered about 

11 that, Mr. McWhirter. I've seen you do the same thing. 

12 

13 

14 check. 

15 

16 tongue. 

17 

MR. McWHIRTER: I know I have. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Had a question subject to 

MR. McWHIRTER: l..nd I've had to bite my 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: I've also wondered what the 

18 consequences of checking and finding it was wrong would 

19 be. 

20 MR. McWHIRTER: I try not to do it, and I make 

21 you a promise that henceforth I'm not going to do that. 

22 

23 

KR. BURGESS: I'l l hold him to it. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Thank you , because you 

24 don't have to bite your tongue and all that messy 

25 bleeding. 
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1 MR. McWHIRTER: Well, you were talking about 

2 bloody lips last night, and all that. 

3 MR. PALECJ<I: I think I can rephrase my 

4 question so even Mr. McWhirter would be satisfied. 

5 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Hoping that we'd get you 

6 all fighting aaong one another, talking about bloody 

7 lips. 

8 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Has the testimony been that 

9 that is one of the asumptions in Gulf Power's 

10 calculation? Has there been any testimony to that 

11 effect? 

12 MR. PALECKI: It's either testimony or it's 

13 in one of the discovery interrogatories. 

14 CHAIRMAN WILSON: You can ask an expert a 

15 hypothetical question. It does have to have some 

16 foundation in the evidence. And I think what your 

17 question ia is a fair variation on what we have been 

18 talking about here, so I think it's a fair question. 

19 MR. PALECKI: I think I can rephrase it to 

20 make it even more fair and I'll ask it this way: 

21 Q (By Mr. Palecki) If the Company was to have 

22 calculated standby service revenue based on the 

23 assumption that in some months standby service 

2( customers would require standby service tor more than 

25 lOt of the time, would the rate o! return !or standby 
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1 service troa your near-peak study be overstated it that 

2 were the case? 

3 A It it happened so that overall throughout the 

4 year standby service were used aore tha n 10\ ot the 

5 tiae, then the revenues would be greater tha~ the c ost 

6 responsibility assigned. on the other hand, it as I've 

7 calculated the outage rates ot the various 

8 self-generating custo .. ra, is that throughout the year 

9 the outage r ates were closer to 1' to 4\; in other 

10 words, they used significantly leas than 10\ throughout 

11 the year, then you'd have a situation where the 

12 rev~nuea would not be sufficient to recover the costs 

13 except for the fact that you'd have the reserva tion 

14 charge. 

15 Q You did accept Gulf's calculation ot the 

16 revenues in performing your near-peak study, correct? 

17 A I used their number, I didn't check the 

18 arithaatic in it. 

19 Q So it their nuaber, in their calculation of 

20 the number were baaed on the assumption that in some 

21 months, standby service cuatoaera would require standby 

22 service tor aure than 10\ ot the time, you accepted 

23 that nuaber. You didn't know whether they assumed t hat 

24 or not, correct? 

25 A Yes, I didn't know, and it was i mpossib l e t o 
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1 tell from the numbers exactly what the standby use 

2 pattern was troa month to month. That's why I looked 

3 at it on a annual baaia and calculated the outage rates 

4 on that baaia. 

5 Q And the n accepting that nu.ber you would have 

6 to adllit that the.re ia a good possibility t hat the rate 

7 ot return tor standby service troa your near-peak study 

8 could be overstated? 

9 A I don't aee hov, beca•1ae it they used standby 

10 lOt ot the tiae all the tiae, there could be more 

11 revenues than exists here. The coats wouldn't change 

12 because, remeaber, the Coat of service Study fixes the 

13 assumption at lOt of the standby contract c apac i ty. 

14 so , it anything, I think that would tend to make the 

15 rate ot return even higher. 

16 Q Moving on to another issue. Does )'Our c ost 

1 7 of service reflect Hr. O'Sheasy's revised Apportionmen~ 

18 ot dedicated substations cost to standby service? This 

19 was explained in his Depositio n No . 4 . Are y ou 

20 familiar with that deposi tion? 

21 A Yea. I'• familiar with the assumptions and 

22 the tact that in later version o f the Cost Study 

23 substation investment was shifted from , I think , the 

24 PXT class to the rate SS , standby servic e cla ss . 

25 Q And does your cost ot service reflec t th i s 
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1 revised apportionaent of dedicatCid substations cost? 

A Yes, I believe it does. Since we use the 2 

3 company's Cost Study as a starting point we use that 

4 version of the Cost Study, which I think we did, it 

5 would reflect those assuaptions . 

6 Q There have been so many different collt 

7 studies that have been filed in this docket, I guess we 

8 ~ave to make sure we're t.alking about the same Cost 

9 study. 

10 Specifically, we're referring to the cost 

11 studies in Exhibit 231. Do you have those available? 

12 If not, we'll provide thea. 

13 A If you can just describe to me which versions 

14 you're talking about. 

15 

16 

Q 

A 

That's the second and third versions. 

Is thet the no-migration scenario or the 

17 scenario that shows SE a• a separate class? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

23 breaK. 

It's the no-miqration scenario. 

Yes, I have that. 

Did you use that one? 

Yes, we did. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Let's take a ten-minute 

24 (Recess) 

25 - - - - -
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3 Q 

2923 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: All right, let's come 

(By Mr. P~lecki) Mr. Pollock, I'd like to 

4 refer to you Lines 20 through 24 of Page 33 of your 

5 prefiled testiao.ny and Line 1 ot Pagf< H . There you 

6 state that, classifying a portion ot the distribution 

7 network as cuata..r-related recognizes the reality that 

8 energy -- or, excuse ae -- that every utility aust 

9 provide a path through which electricity can be 

10 delivered to each and every customer, regardless ot the 

11 peak deaand and energy consumed." 

12 Isn't it true that this reclaasitication ot 

13 these distribution aystea capital costs as 

14 custoaer-related would result in these costs being 

15 allocated only to secondary volt~ge customers or 

16 primary voltage cuatomers served through a substation 

17 serving more than one customer? 

18 A Well, they would be, the customers affected 

19 would be those cuatoaera who take servi ce from the 

20 distribution grid, primary service customers that 

21 receive power tro• a primary feeder or the secondary 

22 custoaers t~at likewia~ receive servi ce trom a 

23 secondary teeder. 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

So the answer to ay question would be ye!.? 

It I understood your question, yes, \ t would. 
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1 The cuatoaera who take service from a direc t substation 

2 would not be affected, from a distribution substation 

3 would not be affected by it. 

4 Q Would tranaaiasion vo i.taCje customers or 

5 priaary voltage custoaera served from a dedicated 

6 aubatation -- and by •dedicated aubst.ation" I mean a 

7 substation •erving only one customer -- be allocated 

8 any of these coats at all? 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

No. 

Are the equivalent of serv ice drops allocated 

11 or aaaiqned to priaary and transmission vo ltage 

12 cuatoaers? 

13 A I'a sorry, what do you mean by •the 

14 equivalent of service drops•? 

15 Q The line running from the c ommo n transmission 

16 or aubtranaaisaion line to the customer's faci l i t i es . 

17 A It would depend on where that investment i s 

18 booked. If the subtransaission investment , 46 kV l i ne , 

19 for example, ia in a transaission account, or course it 

20 would be allocated to all customers. 

21 

22 

Q 

A 

What about a primary customer? 

If you took a 13.8 kV feeder to a direct , a 

23 cuatoaer served froa a dedicated substation? I'm 

2 4 sorry, I'a a little lost. 

25 Q Yea. 
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1 A I don't really know of any instances like 

2 that. I guess I have a hard time answering it. If you 

3 had a custoaer troa a dedicated substation that didn't 

4 get -- that to get that power to the substation, he'd 

5 be taking service at 13.8 kV into the substation or 

6 somethinq less. I think that would be considered a 

7 primary feeder and that cost would be allocated. I 

also don't know it the Coapany has I don't think the 

9 Company has signed any dedicated substations under 

10 those circuaatances. 

11 Q Let's refer specifically to your clients. 

12 Are the lines troa the dedicated substations to the 

13 cuatoaer's facilities owned by each of your clients who 

14 are served through dedicated substations? 

15 A I'm sorry, I aissed something. The lines 

1€ from what point to what point? 

17 Q The lines fro• the dedicated substation to 

18 the custoaer's facilities? 

19 A I believe that all the facilities downstream 

20 of the substation, including whatever lines and 

21 equipment are required, switch gear and so on, are 

22 owned by the customer. 

23 

24 

Q Aren't the lines running from dedicated 

substations to a customer facilities to a customer's 

25 facilities priaary voltage lines? 
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1 A You're talking about facilities that the 

2 custoaera ovn? 

3 Q Correct. 

4 A You could characterize them that way . 

5 They're kind of the -- yea, they are the kind of the 

6 equivalent, if you will, of a service drop to a 

7 cuatour facility that in this case the cuatoaera own. 

8 Q Nov, is it true that, the way Gulf has 

9 perforsed ita coat of service study, only secondary 

10 voltage cuatoaera pay tor the secondary drops and 

11 secondary voltage cuatoaera also pay part of the cost 

12 tor drops or tapa for priaary or transmi ssion voltage 

13 custoura? (Pause) 

14 A Account 369, •Service Drops, Other Services," 

15 are allocated strictly to secondary service customers. 

16 Q If aore ot the distribution systec is 

17 claaaitied as cuatour-related, wouldn't that cost be 

18 allocated on average number of customers and included 

19 in the custoaer charge? 

2 0 A No. I would think that the customer 

21 coaponent would either be average number ot customQrs, 

22 or there mignt be aoae weighting involved to reflec t 

23 the fact that certain equipaent is more expensive to 

24 install. Three-phase service, for example, is more 

25 expensive than single-phase service . ~o you might take 
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1 into account that coat differential and weight the 

2 cuatoaer coaponent accordingly. 

3 Q Would that coat be inc luded i n the cus t vmer 

4 charge? 

5 A I think that's a policy decision that t he 

6 co .. iasion would have to aake. Clearly , t or cost 

7 allocation purposes, it should be rotlected . But 

8 recoqnizinv that thera .ay be different policies 

9 involved in different r~ilosophies as tar as tradeotts 

10 between customer charges and other charges, I think 

11 that's a judcpaent call the Coaaission c an malte at the 

12 tiae that they de5ign the rate . 

1J 

14 cost? 

15 

16 

17 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Would it be included in the c ustomer unit 

In the cost ot service study , yes , it would . 

What's your position on that polic y issue? 

I haven't aade a recoaaendation in ~he c a s e . 

18 But I don't see any reason, unless it's one o r 

19 gra4ualisa or other factors that may come into play 

20 that noraally you take into account in the rate d e s i gn 

21 process. I would use the unit cost inc luding the 

22 component o' the diet~ibution cost that are 

23 customer-related and include that in the unit c ustomer 

24 charge and use that as a starting point tor des igning 

2 5 the rate. How whether the rate would exac tly retlec t 
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1 that unit coat would depend on other polic y 

2 considerations that the Commission might employ, such 

3 aa gradualism . 

4 Q Isn't the effec t of classifying mo re o f the 

5 ayatea aa cuatoaer-related to increase the cost of 

6 classes with small usage custoaP~s and to decrease the 

7 cost tor claaaea with large customers? 

8 A That aay be the effect . But , of course, what 

9 we're trying to do is allocate costs on the basis that 

10 reflects coat causation. And what we're trying to do 

11 ia to find a coat ot service study that closely matches 

12 that coat causation concept and the reality that the 

13 utilities have in serving their customers. To do 

14 otherwise, I guess you could say , woul d have the 

15 opposite effect. 

16 Q Mr. Pollock , in the nine or ten years that 

17 you've been appearing before the Public Serv ice 

18 co-iaaion, have rou ever testified on the 

19 inappropriateness or questioned the existence of the 

20 PX/PXT class? Specifically because of the potential 

21 instability of a class with a small number of 

22 .;ustoaers. 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

I don't believe I have. 

On Page 61, Lines 1 through 3 of your 

25 testiaony, you state in r a sponse to Monsanto's First 
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1 Set of Interrogatories No. 11, that Gult supplied data 

2 necessary to calculate the forced outage rates of three 

3 of ita four self-generating customers. What was the 

4 source of this data? 

5 A I understood it was data Uaal: GuJ.f Power had 

6 available which they needed to obtain customer 

7 authorization for it to be released to us. 

8 Q Did one custoaer refuse to give Gulf 

9 inforaation about its forced outages? 

10 A That's what was indicated in the response, 

11 yea. or they aGybe didn't refuse to give them the 

12 data, I think they refused to disclose the data. 

13 Q 

14 clients? 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

And was one of those customers one of your 

Fortunately not. My clients know better. 

If the revenues in the rate case at present 

17 rates are baaed on the rates ot the class in which the 

18 custoae.r is currently taking service or migra't ing from, 

19 isn't this an assignment to the migrat ing customer o! 

20 the coat of the class in which they are taking service 

21 before aigration? 

22 A May I try ~o restate the question as X tnink 

23 I understood it? If you have a customer that's in an 

24 existing class, let's say GSD, that determines a! cer a 

25 rate change that the GS rate or the LP rate were more 
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2 that customer go it that customer migrated to a 

3 different class? 

4 

5 

Q 

A 

Correct. (Pause) 

Well, ideally, what you try to do is -- it 

6 would go to the class that the customer was migrating 

7 to. In other words, it you had the ability to redo the 

8 coat of service study a1'ter the migration had taken 

9 place , then the costs that are associated with that 

10 customer wot,ld be in the class that the customer 

11 aigrated to. 

12 Unfortunately, you don't have maybe it's 

13 fortunate -- you don't have the ability to precisely 

14 track the cost responsibility of custoaers that migrate 

15 troa one class to another in the context ot the rate 

16 case, and therefore you would have to look at the next 

17 rate case to determine the cost tor that class with the 

18 migration included. 

19 

20 is? 

21 

Q 

A 

Do we know what the cost to serve that group 

we certainly know what the cost is tor that 

22 group ot cust~aers or tnat class that the customer 

23 migrated from. We know what the cost to serve ot the 

24 class as a qroup vhich the customer is miqrating to. 

25 The real question is does that customer's --
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1 presumably, therefore, that customer's characteribtics 

2 for the way that the rate is designed, it provides an 

3 incentive for that customer to move from one rate c lass 

4 to the other. 

5 So that I guess what I' 11 leadi!lg t o -- and I 

6 don't profess to have thought into great depth about 

1 this. But what I'• leading to is that, under those 

b circumstances and the rate design and the rate levels 

9 between different classes, that customer's 

10 characteristics, the one that's migrating, will be more 

11 reflective of the class that he's migrating to than the 

12 class he's aiqrating from. Or it could be that his 

13 c haracteristics are not the same; but the way the rate 

14 is designed in the ainiau.s a.nd things , that the other 

15 provisions of the rate that affect the decision, that 

16 that custoaer aiaply finds it economically advantage 

17 an econoaic advantage tc switch rates without really 

18 changing his characteristics. 

19 Q Ia it probable that the coat to serve of a 

20 group of migrating customers is somewhere between the 

21 coat to oerv~ each o f the two involved classes? 

22 A I ~ave a hard time making a general statement 

23 like that. I think, yo~ know , if you're dealing with 

24 situations of customers that are not on the, let's say, 

25 on the extreaes or near the ainimums where the rate 
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1 kicks in, that would certainly be the case. 

2 I! you're dealing with customers that may be 

3 a!!ected because o! the ainiaum provisions -- for 

4 example, it you have a customer that h 1s de~and is 

5 sliqhtly below the qualifying level for t~c ~~ass that 

6 he'B in, and nov the rate level of the low demand class 

7 changes in a favorable way, L~at customer is going to 

" migrate to the lov deJDand class, simply because the 

9 rate is lower, not because his characteristics 

10 necessarily warra.nt it. 

11 Q Would it be !air to require either the cl ass 

1~ to which they are aigrating -- or from which they are 

13 migrating to absorb the entire shortfall when we don't 

14 know what the actual cost to serve the customers is? 

15 And I !allow that up: Is splitting the shortfall 

1 6 due to the migration between the two involv~d classes 

17 on the revenues o! the t vo classes a reasonable and 

18 fair method , given that we don't know the coot to serve 

19 o! the migrating custoaers? 

20 A I would accept that. You really are not 

21 dealing in a very precise situation and I don't think 

22 there's any question whatever shortfall occurs has to 

23 be recovered froa somebody. And that may be a very 

24 equitable way to do it. 

25 Q Are you --
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1 A I've seen it done different ways which may or 

2 may not be equitable. But the way the ColllJ'·ission 

3 decides to do it. 

4 

5 

0 

A 

Are you aware of ~~y more equitable method? 

I can't say I think one aethcxi is more 

6 equitable than the other. I think the idea, it we ' re 

7 talking about a fairly saall amount of aoney, I don't 

B see any inaquity in trying to split the difference 

9 between the two classes. 

10 MR. PALECKI: Thank you. Stat! has no 

11 further questions. 

12 

13 

WITNESS POLLOCJC: Thank you . 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Questions, Commissioners? 

14 Redirect? 

15 REDIRECT EXAMINATI ON 

16 BY KR . McWHIRTER: 

17 0 Mr. Pollock, you were asked a hypot het i ca l 

18 question concerning an assumption that 10 ' o f the time 

l9 that a standby customer had a forced outage , it wou ld 

20 be during a peak period. Do you rec all that 

21 hypothet i cal question? 

22 I ~hink the question was: "Are there some 

23 months when standby custoaara are using standby power 

24 more th.an 10' of the tiae. 

25 0 Has your inveatJgation disc l vsed that to be 
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1 the tact? 

2 A Aa I responded earlier, it's di r tic ult to 

3 tell !roa the data. Because I think what'• happening 

4 is the aseuaption is made that i t the customer incurs 

s daily d .. and charges which generally only kick in after 

6 you have uaed standby power for tvo calendar days, that 

7 that aeana that the custo .. r'• use o! standby service 

B exceeds lOt ot the tiae because three days out o! 30 

9 days ia lOt. 

10 And the difficulty I was having with that 

11 asauaption was the tact that the way the rate works , 

12 you're ch.arged tor a day ot standby power , even 1 t you 

13 use it tor just a couple ot hours or one 15-ainute 

14 interval. So you can't really tell trom the daily 

lS standby charges what percentage o ! the the total time 

16 standby power was being used. 

17 Q Is there soae way that you can re.medy that 

18 circumstance? 

19 A Only by knowing the underlying assu~ptions as 

20 to what hours, actual hours, of outage were being 

21 assumed could you really remedy that. 

22 Q Is ~here any i nformation in this record to 

23 date that would help you to solve the riddle? 

24 A The only intor.ation I have is the hours on 

25 an annua l basis. And which demonstrate that throughout 
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1 the year forced outage rates are considerably less than 

2 10\. 

3 Q Are you faailiar with an aaaociatiun ot 

4 utility companies known aa tne Florida Coordinating 

s Group? 

6 A Yea. 

7 Q And are you faailiar with the concept of 

. 
J economic dispatch of energy? 

9 A Yea. 

10 Q can you give us a quick nutshell ot what that 

11 b? 

12 A Econoaic diapatch ia t .he loading of 

13 generation facilities in order of coat t o try to a l ways 

14 put on line the cheapest generation first and to use 

15 the aore expensive resources as they are needed . 

16 Q Ia that essentially the aaae kind of theory 

17 that you're espousing tor cogenerators, an economic 

18 dispatch concept? 

19 A Very aiailar, yea. And , i n tact, I'd say it 

20 was very synonyaous. 

21 Q And with the FCG's program, is there any 

22 concern that the customers of the selling utility are 

23 subsidizing the cuatoaers ot the buying util1ty for the 

24 capital coats associated vith production facilities? 

25 A Well, what they're trying to do i s what makes 
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1 economic sense. It doesn't make sense to - -

2 economically to run generation that is ~ore costly it 

3 you have access to leas coat, lower cost energy that 

4 can fulfill the same purpose. 

5 

6 

7 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Can 1 ask a question? 

WITNESS POLLOCJC: Yea. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: But there is an 

8 economic benefit in the broker system than a split 

9 savings concept, correct? 

10 WITNESS POLLOCJC: That' a true. 

11 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: And -- your broker 

12 ayatea doeon't run one way? All participants are 

13 meabera, is that correct? 

14 

15 

WITNESS POLLOCX: That' a right . 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: So in order for it to 

16 really work, like in response to a question from your 

17 counsel, to work like the broker system, then wouldn 't 

18 it almost require the cogenerators to be dispatchable 

19 units, and in the time when their generation was less 

20 than the system average, that they would be required to 

21 also sell? 

22 

23 

WITNESS POLLOCJ<: Well --

COMMISSIONER GUNTER : Bec ause not doing that, 

24 it only cuts one way. 

25 WITNESS POLLOCX: Well , I se£ your polnt. I 
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1 think the problea ia there needs t o be -- t here would 

2 have to be a auch greater dialogue ~ ~tween the Compa ny 

3 -- the ut i lity and the customer for this to rea lly 

4 work . 

5 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: I ' m no t look ing tor --

6 what I ' a talking about, philosophic ally , it has to c ut 

7 both ways in order for it to mirro r the broker s ystem. 

8 

9 

WITNESS POLLOCJC: That's right . 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: You're d o ing o ne of t he 

10 things I used to talk about, people would give you 400 

11 reasons it wouldn't work. Certain ly would have t o be 

12 improveaents and have to be soae dispatcha bi li t y, a 

13 nuaber of, probably , equipment changes . 

14 WITNESS POLLOCJC : I don't th i nk 

15 dispatchability is necessar i l y the key . What we arA 

16 saying --

17 COMMISSIONER GUNTER : But tor the economic 

18 benefit to flow both ways, i t has to be . 

19 WITNESS POLLOCK: For the e conomic benet it to 

20 flow both ways, the charge t hat wo uld be levied for 

21 this supplementa l energy would have tc provide more 

22 than just recove.ry of out-of-poc ke t costs to t he 

23 utility and provide s ome co ntribution t o t h e fixed cost 

24 c ustomers . 

25 Now, ay understanding is that t hat wou ld 
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1 happen by definition under the SE rate because it's 

2 only available when the cost to gener ate i s less than 

J the average tuel charge that the c ustomer pays at the 

4 time that that aervice is taken. So, in effect, there 

5 is a aargin being provided under t~e SE tate from the 

6 custo•er to the Co•pany, which helps t he Company to 

7 detray aore ot ita tixad costs. 

8 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Well, again , what I'm 

9 saying is you're reaponding, yeah, that's the way it 

10 should work, going one way with the cogenerator in 

11 response to a question trom Counsel. 

12 

13 

WITNESS POLLOCX: Well, the other way is -­

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Then all of a sudden 

14 you start getting into a rate activity when he was 

15 asking you a philosophical . And I asked you a 

16 philosophical, and now you ' re starting to give me 

17 reasons why it won't work because of a rate structure. 

18 You need to stay philosophical to philosophical or 

19 tactual to tactual. But somehow we are not making 

20 ambrosia, you know, oranges and coconuts. 

21 WITNESS POLLOCX: I agree with that. 

22 COMMISSIONER GUNTER : Go ahead, Counselor. I 

23 apologize to you. 

24 MR . McWHIRTER: That's all right. When you 

25 get into philosophy, I sort of think on ~ higher plane, 
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1 and someti••• it takes me a litt l e bit --

2 COMMISSIONER GUNTER : I thought that's what 

3 you were doing. 

4 

5 

MR. McWHIRTER: -- a ~ong ti~e to get bac k. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON : Only problem, Mr . 

6 McWhirter , is when you s t art thinking o n a h igher 

7 plane, when you start gett ing contused on a h igher 

B plane. 

9 Q (By Mr. McWhirter) Mr. Pollock, wi th respect 

10 to the SE rate, the alternatives, I vres ume , wou ld be 

11 that the utility would not sell the electricity at all 

12 as opposed to selling additional electri c ity o tt -peak, 

13 i s that correct? 

14 A That's correct. It a c ustomer didn't have 

15 the option or couldn't have access to the lower cost 

16 energy, the customer would simply operate that l ess 

17 eff j cient generation and not buy extra energy from the 

18 utility . 

19 Q When Mr. Haskins was on the stand, he said 

20 that utility system had a 55' load !actor and that it 

21 was -- would be beneficial t o the utili ~y to improve 

22 its load !actor. Is the SE rate a way t hat the load 

23 factor o ! a utility can be i mproved ? 

24 A Very definitely, yes. 

25 Q And why would that be beneficial to t he 
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1 utility? 

2 A Because, as I indicated be!ore, the tact that 

3 the Company is able to sell more energy at t ! mes when 

4 capacity is not critical at a cost that exceeds -- or 

5 at a cost which is less than the price r.eceived tor 

6 that extra enerqy, it not only iaproves the Cocpany•s 

7 load factor, it iaprovea the efficiency of the 

8 generation system. It provides more revenues, mor e 

9 contribution to the fixed ccgts than would otherwise be 

10 t he case. 

11 Q And to that degree, it benefits all 

12 customers, not just the customer involved, is that 

13 correct? 

14 A That's correct. 

15 Q So there is a two-way flowing economics, is 

16 that correct? 

17 

18 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Now, if the -- if you schedule your 

19 maintenance outage cont8lllporaneously with the time that 

20 the utility had available power, which apparently it 

21 does 45\ of the time --

22 MR. PALECKI: I'd object. ! 'm not sure this 

23 is in the line of redirect. I don't recall this being 

2 4 cove.red by cross. 

25 MR. McWHIRTER: I thought you asked ~estions 
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1 about maintenance power, .. lling it to the cogenerator 

2 during time when he was aaintaining without triggering 

3 a new standby duaand. 

4 KR. PALECXI: I don't rec al l asking about 

5 maintenance power. Are you talking abou·~. 1'co: giveneaa 

6 ot the reservation charge? Because it that ' s tho c aoo, 

7 we didn't go into that issue. 

B KR. McWHIRTER: Let ae tell yow what I'm 

9 talking about and see if you think this was in the 

10 reala of your direct. 

11 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Tell me what you're talking 

12 about and then it you have an objection, you can tell 

13 me what your objection is and then I'll dec ide whether 

14 you can do tbat or not. How does that sound? 

15 KR. McWHrRTER: Doaa your objection still 

16 pertain after counseling with Ma. Meeter? 

17 

18 

KR. PALECKI: That's correct. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Do you have an objection 

19 that it'• beyond the scope ot cross? 

20 

21 

22 

KR. PALECICI: Tba t' s correct. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: All right. 

MR. McWHIRTER: Mr. Chairman , I don't believe 

23 it's beyond the scope ot the cross because his cross 

24 dealt with the registering of a new reservation charge 

25 when the utility, the cogenerator, aaintained its own 
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1 cogeneration units . One o! the issues that has been 

2 raised by Mr. Pollock was that i! the1·e's available 

3 power, it should not set a new standby c harge during 

4 the aaintenance period . AnG I believe , it' I'm not 

5 mistaken, that Counsel tor the Comm1ssion Stat! did 

6 inquire into the things that trigger a new standby 

7 reservation charge. I aay be in error on that . I 

8 certainly recall somebody asking . It may have been ~-

9 Burgess. I didn't make a note of the person that asked 

10 the question. 

11 CHAIRMAN WILSON: I'm going to allow the 

12 question. Go ahead. 

13 Q (By Mr. McWhirter) You have a situation !rom 

14 as you pointed out, every five years or so you hav~ 

15 t o take the coqenerator down tor maintenance, and thAre 

16 is a problea in that when you take it down for 

17 maintenance, that'• tr~ated the same as a f o rced 

18 outage, is that correct? 

1 9 A There's a risk that, along wi th the other 

20 needs o! the coqenerator, that your demand is going t o 

21 exceed the existing standby contract capacity and that 

22 will trigger the next 23 aonths additional reservat ion 

23 local facilities charges !or that particular outa ge. 

24 Q Are there a steps a customer ca n take to 

25 protect against this happening? 
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Well, vhat Stone does is they shut the vlant 

2 down enouqb ao that they can take their large turbine 

3 out for aaintenance and do other plant maintenance and 

4 simply not produce paper as they w~uld otherwise like 

5 to. 

6 Q If the plant bouqbt as-available power during 

7 tbia period of ti .. , vould the utility receive any 

8 benefit froa thoae aalea? 

9 A Are ve talking about now the id~a that 

10 coordinated aaintenance scheduled in advance would no~ 

11 cause the cuatoser to trigger the 23-month ratchet? 

12 Q That'• corect. 

13 A That vould provide, I think, an economical 

14 alternative for both the utility and the company in 

15 question, or the cuatoaer in question, provide two-way 

16 flow of economic benefit• in the sense that the utility 

17 will provide -- vill get aore revenues from the 

18 service, they'll get it at a tiae when the capacity i s 

19 available, vhen they know it's available and it's 

20 ~vailable for a certain fix~ period of time. Whereas , 

21 in the alternative, they would not get that additional 

22 reve.nue. The cuatoaer, ot course, benet its because he 

23 can continue to produce hi• product, which is what the 

24 customer 1• in buaineaa to do. 

25 Q can you visualize aa rational, economic 
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1 juatitication tor disallowing the coordinated 

2 maintenance, or is it your opinion that the refusal to 

3 allow coordinated aaintenance ia essentially a barrier 

4 to cogeneration? 

5 A Well, to the exte nt tha ·c. YNi a.ake a standby 

6 rate leas attractive, that could be v i ewed as a 

7 barrier . It's certainly a factor . But, aa far as the 

B econoaic justification h concerned, it's a different 

9 quality of service than backup power because it's 

10 provided in a known quantity !or a known duration and 

11 it's scheduled at a time when capacity is available. 

12 So I would argue that there is ample economic 

13 justification tor treatinq that type of service 

14 differently, and I think the Commission recognized that 

15 possibility. 

16 Q Is there any economic jus~ification for 

17 refusing to allow coordinated maintenance? 

18 

19 

20 

A I don't aee there is one. 

MR. McWHIRTER: I have no further redirect. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Let me as'< you a question . 

21 Do you have Mr. Scheff Wright's testimony there? 

22 WITNESS POLLOCK: I'm sorry, I do not. Hi s 

23 direct tesciaony? 

24 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Yes, I'm l ooking at Exhibit 

25 RSW-4. 
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1 WITNESS POLLOCX: Yes , I have that. 

2 CHAIRMAN WILSON: If I wantfd to compare the 

3 different coat atudy aethodologiea , would thia be the 

4 fonaat th.at I would -- that would a ppropriately do 

5 

6 

that? Have you looked at a ny of thi~7 

WITNESS POLLOCX: I've looked at hie 

7 s c hedule•, yea. Your question is, if I •~nted to 

B compare the coat allocation aethods , would thia be a 

9 way of comparing thea? 

10 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Would this be the best way 

11 of coaparing thea, or a good way of comparing them? 

12 WITNESS POLLOCK: I would say it wasn 't the 

13 moat coaplete way to coapare them. I would say it ' s 

14 not a very good way to compare them. 

15 CHAIRMAN WILSON: What else would you put on 

16 there, or what would you do different? 

17 WITNESS POLLOCX: I think that what you would 

18 have to do is look at the percentages of plant and 

19 perc entage• of operating costs and the per-unit plant 

20 and the per-unit operating costs being allocated under 

21 each ot the different methods to test the consistenc y 

22 of that method, to determine whether or not a method , 

23 in tact, does what it says it's supposed to do or wha t 

24 the underlying theory says it's supposed to do. 

25 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Have you done ~ comparison 
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like that, yourself? 

WITNESS POLLOCK: I have done a limited 

more liaited coaparison in looking at the -- tor 

exaaple, the refined equiva l ent peaxer method and 

coaparing the per-unit capital cos~• and per-unit fuel 

costa that are iap licitly allocated to the classes. 

That's in - - if I can uncover it . (Pause) 

Tha t ' s in Schedule 2, revised , of my 

exhibit. I've taken the comparison one step further 

and s a id, okay, let's look at the productio n plant 

coats and what t hat aeana on a per-unit o! demand and 

compare t hat; a nd said, okay, let's look at the 

operating coats that would be recovered !rom thes e 

c lasses and coapare that on a per- unit of energy . And 

the question is, if the theory s ays that one c lass is 

assigned higher than average plant cost, is that theory 

also being applied logically and consistenrly to resul t 

in that same class being assigned lower ope r ating 

costs? I guess you'd call that a sanity c heck. 

And the conclusion of this schedule is , no, 

this aethod is not allocating cost& properly. 

CHAIRHAN WILSON : Does tho RSW-4 sclled<Jle 

tell •e anything useful here? 

RSW-4 just aiaply carve~ out certain ~ost 

components and the way they are being allo~ated under 
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1 the different methods . 

2 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Do you agree with the 

3 percentages that are displayed in that? 

4 WITNESS POLLACK: I haven't actually checked 

5 them. I think the perc entages are probably all 

6 difte.rent now, because I think this exhibit was based 

7 upon the coat studies that are attached to Mr. Wright's 

8 teatia.ony, which have gone through and discussed ror 

9 several revisions, au I haven't rec hecked these 

10 percentages. 

11 I have trouble just compar ing percentages, 

12 because percentages don't really tell you what's behind 

13 the methodo logy and how the methodology is working . 

14 And whether it's doing what it's supposed ~o. 

15 CHAIRMAN WILSON: No, but it can show yo •J the 

16 effect ot that aethodology, sort of a broad-base look 

1 7 at it. 

18 WITNESS POLLOCI<: I think the better way is 

19 to look at the overall results and try tc make some 

20 comparisons; compare the revenue requirement by 

21 component, production demand, energy, transmission, as 

22 I believe the s tarr often does when they line up each 

23 or these Cost ot Service Studies and say, "Here's how 

24 much production coat is assigned t o this class and here 

25 are the transmission costs. And you can just look at 
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1 it in a spread aheet and appreciate the effect on the 

2 different components, on all of the components and not 

3 just certain components. 

4 CHAIRMAN WILSON: All r ig.ht. Thank you . 

5 Anything further of this witnesa? lf not, thank you 

6 very auc.h. You -y stand dovn. He ' 11 be back with u11 

7 on rebuttal, ia that right? 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

WITNESS POLLOCK: I w i 11 . 

(Witne•• Pollock excused) 

MR. VANDIVER: Commissioner? 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Yea? 

MR. VANDIVER: At this time , a s a 

14 housekeeping matter, I would like t o move for insertion 

15 into the record as though read, the testimony of Mr. 

16 Seery, along with his exhibits that have been 

17 previously stipulated. 

18 CHAIRMAN WILSON : Without objection, his 

19 testiaony will be ao inserted into the record and the 

20 exhibits have been e o stipulated . 

21 MR. McWHIRTER: Mr . Chairman , I'd like to 

22 otter in Hr. Pollock's exhibits whic h were 612, I 

23 bel i eve. I believe I got 6 10 and 611 last n ight, but 

24 if not, I'd like to offer those at this time. 

:s CHAIRMAN WILSON: All right. Without 
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1 objection those exhibits are adaitted into evidence. 

2 (Exhibit Ho. 610 and 611 received i ntQ 

3 evidence) 

4 (Witness Seery's EXhibit No. 381 stipulated 

5 into evidence.) 
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DIRECT TESTIMONY Of SCOTT SE£RY 

Q PI ease state your na.11e and bus I ness address . 

A Hy na.e Is Scott Seery. Hy business address Is 101 £as t 

Gaines Street, Tal lahassee, Florida, 32399-Q8SO. 

Q By wh011 are you e.ployed and lr. vhat capacity? 

A I aa et!ployed by t he Florida Put•ll c Servi ce Co."Onlsslon as a 

regulatory analyst In the Bureau of Fi nance . 

Q Pl ease outl ine your educat ional qualifi cati ons and 

expert ence . 

A I received a Bachelor of Science degree In Business 

Admln1st ratlon, vlth honors, In 1976 from Hest VIrg in\ ., 

University and a Master of Business Admin is tration degree wi th a 

concent rati on In Finance from the Univer si t y of Sou t h Florida 1n 

1985. 

Prior to accepting •Y current position with the 1 •o• idJ. 

Publ i c Service cc-1sslon In January cf 1986, I was "mployet1 1\ 

a buyer for Hercantlle Stores Company Incorporated. Hy 

r'!sponslblllt l es Included purchasing, Inv en tory contro l, and 

sa les supervi s ion . 

Shortl y afler obtain i ng my HBA In Finance, I began 

e•ployment as a regulatory analyst with th e f lorida Publi c 

Service Commission, wher e my prima ry respons lbl II tie s h~ ve 

cons isted of analyzing and evaluat ing flnanct al. rconomlr . drd 

statist ical data relating to ra t e of re t urn te s t lmony In uti lit·.· 

ra t e proceedings and prepari ng and presenting relommenddllon ~ tv 
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the CO..Isslon based upon this data . I have also resea rrhed 

other related topics and have previously present ed cos t of 

~qu lty testl.any before the Commission. 

1 am a meuber of the financial Hanag~ent Asso( la t lon 

and the Nati onal Society o f Ra te of Return Analysts . 

Q Hhat Is the purpose of your testl110ny? 

A The purpose of •Y testimony Is to establish the appropridte 

cost of common equity capital for Gulf Power Company <Gulf 

Power) for use In determi ning an appropriate all owed rate of 

return for Gulf Powe r. 

Hy testimony will also address the approprlat ~ 

regulatory treatment of non-u til i ty re lated assets. tempora ry 

cash Investments. and continuing cash ba lances when reconc iling 

rate base and cap i tal structure . 

Q Hhat pr\nc1p.les provided the l egal frame~~tork for your 

dete~lnatlon of a fair rate of return? 

A The pr\nclpl es estab11shed by the Supreme Court o f .... 

Un i ted States In Bluefie ld Haterworlc.s ..ArulJ.rnDroveme.l l C..n~""><~ n y v . 

Publ\c Serytce Conrnl sslon of Hest Yirg~ . 262 u. s . 6/ 'J ( 19l3l 

and federal Power Comm\ ssloo v . ~Haturai_Ga~ (Qmpany 320 

U.S . 591 ( 1944} provided the primary legal ~asls for my 

analys1s . The Supreme Court he ld in both the II O.P~ and B!ue fi ('ltj 

deci sions that the retu rn to the equity owner should be 

coaeensu rate with returns on Investmen t s in other enterp r ise ~ 

having corresponding risks. Th e retur n, moreover . shou ld be 

-2-
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sufftctent to assure confidence In the f inanci al Integrity of 

the enterprise so as to mai nta in credit dnd attrac t capital . 

0 In additi on to the princi ple s established by the~ and 

Bluefield declstons, vhat other 9uldellnes did you consider' 

A Based upon -, understanding of the HQQf and Blueflel~ 

decisions, a regulated util ity should be al lowed to recover dll 

costs prudently 1ncurred In the prov i sion of ut ili ty service. 

Including an appropriate return on coemon equity cap ita l . 

Recovery of all pru,lently Incurred cos ts, Inc lud i ng capital 

costs , effectively balances the Interests of Inves tors and 

ratepayers . Investors are provided with a return com1wn;urate 

with returns on tnvest•ents of compa r able r ls ~. whl le rat epayer ~ 

pay the true cost for the services provided . 

0 How does the allowed return on common equity relate to a 

ba lancing of the Interests of Investors and ratepayers' 

A The adequacy of expec t ed ea rn ings can be determined by a 

t omparlson of the .ar~et price of a f irm's common stocK t ~ i t s 

book value. If the expected return on common equity eQual s 

Investor requlre.ents, the market- to-boo~ ratio can be expected 

to approx imate one over the long run . If the expec t ed return on 

book equ ity exceeds the cost of common equl ty :nvcs tors .. 1 II t.,1 •: 

the price of the stock up, such that the ma rKet price per \ har f 

exceeds the book value per share . resulting In a n~ rket-t o- bool 

rat io above one. The market pri ce wl II move up or duwn In 

r~~ponse to th~ leve l of the utility's expec ted return s r e l d t '\~ 

- 3-



• 

• 

e -

2 9 S3 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF SCOTT SEfRY 

to the Investor's r\s~ dr iven, required rate of return. To the 

2 extent utility rates reflect a return abov e that required by 

3 Investors ratepayers are overcharged . Conversely , \f a 

4 utility's market-to-book rati o Is less than one, exte.nal Issues 

5 of comMOn stock will confiscate shareholders' wealth through the 

6 dilution of earn\ngs per share and boo~ value per share . 

7 Therefore, regulators should strive to set au thori ze~ rates of 

8 return that result In aar~et- to-boo~ rati os of approximatel y 1 .0 

9 over the long run. 

10 0 How does your analysis of a fa\r rate of return on Gul f 

11 Power's common equity capital meet these basic legal criter ia? 

12 A Hy analysts of an appropriate rate of return on Gulf Power· ~ 

13 coanon equity capital I s based upon an evaluat ion of r eturn 

14 

15 

requlr~nts for c~arable r\sk common equity Investments as 

deten.lned through th~ direct app licat ion of capital ma rket 

16 valuation .adels to current financial and economic data . In my 

17 opinion, a market based equ\ty prl c\ng analysis satisfies the 

18 comparable returns, capital attract\on , and financi al Integrity 

19 guidelines estab i lshed by ~e and Bluefield for determ1n\ng a 

20 fa\r and reasonabl e rat e of return on common equity capita l . 

21 Q Hhat have you concluded Is the cost of common equity cap l t dl 

22 for Gu lf Power? 

23 A Based upon the results of my analysis, I conclude the 

24 cu rrent cost of common equity capital for Gu lf Pow~r Is 12. 251 

25 Q · ~u ld you descr\be your general approach to measuring Gul f 
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Power's equity cost rate? 

2 A In order to properly evaluate the returns obtained through 

3 use or a .arket based equity pricing ana :ysls , I first examined 

4 general econ~lc conditions, as we ll as Indus t ry and company 

5 factors, Vhtch drive capital .arket return requirements. then 

6 applied tvo generally accepted aarket rote of return .odel s to 

7 an Index of co.parable co.panles as a means to estimate Gulf 

8 Power's cost of c~n equity capital. 

9 Q How do econoalc condit ions Impact capital market return 

10 requtre~nts? 

11 A The Interrelated factors of In f lation and Interest rat ~s 

12 have a )lgnlflcant l~act on Investor return requirement s . 

13 Q Plea~e elaborate . 

14 

15 

A Incre4ses In the general level of pr ices affect Inte res t 

rates because Investors are unwil l ing to comnl~ thei r runo s 

16 unles s they are adequate ly protected against futur e losses In 

17 purchasing power . If Investors ant ici pate a higher ratP of 

18 Inflation they will adjust their ret urn requirements upward '0 

19 guard against the erosion of purcha sing power . 

20 In addition, accelerating Inflati on and rising lnt ere ~ t 

21 rates Increase the uncer tai nty surround ing a f i rm's ear nings dnJ 

22 dividends. Histori cally, the util i ty Indus t ry ha ~ been 

23 particularly vulnerable to the eff ects of h1 qh inflation ano 

24 high Interest rates . Dur i ng per iods of acceicratlng lnf ldtl on. 

25 earnings deteriorat ion has resul t ed from r ising labor and othe r 
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operattng expenses and also fra. the substanttal tmp~ct of 

Increasi ng plant costs and the associa t ed financing due to the 

capital Intensive nature of the utility Industry . 

0 Havt you eta-lned change5 In In f lati on rates? 

A Ye:, I have. Schedule l shows the level of Inflat ion a~ 

~asured by the Consu.er Price Index. 

0 Have you exa-lned changes In Int ere st ra tes? 

A Yes, I have . Page I of Schedule 2 Is a graph for yi e lds ~n 

seasoned •A• rated ut ility bonds . These bonds averaged 

approxl.atel y 9.771 dur ing 1989 and 10.491 In 1988 . The monthl y 

average for March was 9. 851. The yl eld on the bellvether 

30-year Treasury bond aver aged 8.441. during 1989 . The current 

ytel d on the 30-year Treasury bond Is 8.961. 

0 Please di scuss the current economi c ~nvlronment and cur rent 

expectations regarding Inf l at ion and in t e re~ t rate\ . 

A The U.S. economy s loved appreciably In the fourth quarter of 

1989 , Impacted by such factors as the earthqua~e In Cdl ; rornia, 

a strtk.e at the Boei ng Company, and a reduct io" .n con ~umer 

spend! ng. Recent I y. however. th e economy has begun to show some 

stgns of renewed vigor. 

In Mar ch of this yea r, t he ci vilian unemp loym~n t ra t e 

fell to 5.21 after r ema lnlng at 5. 31. for nl ne conq•c ut l ve 

*Onths . Although payroll s grew by a mode st 26 .000 people 1n 

March , emp loyer s hlr~d ove r 700,000 new wor~ e r s In the f irs t two 

months of this year . 

- 6 -
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The retail sector accounts for approx l ~t~ly one third 

of the nati on's econoal c act lvlty. Retail sales f ell by 0.61 in 

March after declln\ng 0.31 In February. Howe~er. excluding 

automobil e sales , ~lch remain troublesome, reta il sales we re up 

1. 11 In January , 1.51 In rc~iu~ ry , and down 0 .41 In Mar ch. 

Given the strong ga ins posted In both Janua ry and february, most 

econo-l sts do not find the slip In March a! lrmlng. fu r ther, 

desp i te recent surveys that Indicate a decline In consumer 

conn dence, many economl s t s be II eve consu111er spendIng rema 1 .. s 

strong enough to sustain continued economic growth . 

Industr ial producti on lnc r~ased by 0.71 In March 

fol lowing a 0 . 61 Increase In February . Indust r ial ca pacity 

utilization rose In March to 83 .31 fr~ the 82 .91 level recorded 

In February . Analysts said a r etu rn to nor~~~a 1 temperl\tures. 

fol lowi ng an unseasonably warm February, caused ~ su r9c In 

utility output, which, In conjunction with Increased automobil e 

production, accounted for the Inc rea sed produc tion i:1 !'I.e•,••· : n 

addit ion, the latest Commerce Department report lndi ,d t cs that 

business 1 nventorles dec r eiied by 0.41 in rebruary , a t the same 

times sal es Inc rea sed by 1 . 31, keeping \ nventorle: at manageab le 

levels. 

As It has for much of the recent pas t, the specte r o f 

Inflation remains on the hor izon posing a th reat to continued 

economic expansion . Over the pas t 12 months, produc~ r prices 

have Increa sed by 4.41 . llowev er , excluding the typi cdl ly 
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volatil e food and energy co~ts, pri ces grew at a more ~erate 

3.81 pace over the past year . A ~re widely followed •easu re of 

3 Inflation, the Consumer Price Index lncrtased by 0.51 In Harch. 

4 the sa-e rate as In February . The March Increase pushes the 

5 rate of Inflat ion for the first quarter to an 8. 51 annual rat e, 

6 the highes t quarterly rate since t he tlr ; t quarter of 1990. 

7 Many econa.lsts believe the la test nuabers Ind i cate that 

8 Inflation re.alns a persistent probl e. . 

9 Many analysts believe the latest Inf lation numbers will 

10 prevent any easing ot Interest rates by the Fed . ONer the past 

11 year, the Fed has been keeping Interest rates high In an ~ ffort 

12 to curb demand and reduce upward pressure on prIces. li lt l.oJV\FJ 

13 higher Interest rates have served to slow the economy, tna11y 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

zo 
Zl 

zz 
Z3 

24 

Z5 

econa.lsts believe the Fed has made progres s In controlling, but 

not reducing, Inf lati on. 

Q Hhat other economic factors hav e you considered? 

A The trade and budget de f lc l ts con tinue to overshadow tt.e 

performance of the U.S . economy. The trad e def icit narrmtl'd 11y 

S2. 83 bill ion In February, to S6. 49 billi on, the smdllesl 

monthly Imba lance since December 1983 . Imports , whlrh fe ll by 

7. 61, accounted for the marked Improvemen t Howeve r. at the 

same tl•e. exports fell 11 from t he record high reached In 

JanuJry . 

A sign ifi cant r eduction In U.S. purchases of fvrelgn 

oi l. r ef lecting both a dec line In pri ces and a reducti on In 
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volume, l ed the drop In Imports . Accompanying the recent 

progres s made In reducing the trade defic it has been a reduction 

3 In t he gap In the U.S. bal ance of pay.ent s which fell to S105 . 88 

4 bl 11 lon In 1989, the lowest level In five years . 

5 Congress enac ted l&g lsla tlon In 1989 allowing the 

6 national debt level to ri se to $3 . 1 trill ion, an amoun t over 

7 three tl.es the Sl trillion aark reached In 1980. Hany analys t s 

8 believe the prospects for near-ter11 lmprovetaent In the budget 

9 defi cit are bleak. However, U.S. Representat ive Daniel 

10 Rostenkovsk1, Cha1raan of the U.S. House of Representatives Hay\ 

11 and Heans Committee , recent ly Int roduced a deficit reduttlon 

12 plan calling for a $511 . 6 billion reduction over five years 

13 (1990-1995). The deflc f t reduct ion plan proposes to balance the 

14 budget In three years and achieve a budget surplus by fiscal 

I S year 1994 . 

16 Analysts contend that the cont h uatlon of such huge 

17 trade and budget deficits erode s confid enc e In bot h th e dollar 

18 and the U. S. economy and, absent prcductlvl ty Qains. will reduce 

19 the standard or living in the u.s . 

20 The future cour se of the economy and of inflation 

21 r emai ns unclear. In any case , a coa!pOnent of r equired yield s 15 

22 compensation for upec tec Inflation, the leve l of wh ic h dl rt-c t l y 

23 af fects the cos t of deb t and equity . Schedule 3 is d summary Gf 

24 various Interes t rates and Infla tion rat es. Schedule 3 al so 

25 shows Blue Chi p forecas ts for ~arlous mea sure ; of inf ldtion and 
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Interest rates . 

2 In su..ary, electric strcks re.aln sens it ive to 

3 Interest rates and Inf lation. Investor perceptions of hl9her 

4 Interest ratt) would place d~wnward pressure on electri c utility 

5 stock prices . Conversely, a ~!o~l~9 econoay and falling 

6 Interest rates could cause elect ric utility stock pri ces to r ise 

7 since utility stocks are generally regarded as defensive Issues . 

8 0 Hhat financial models did you use to deter•lne the required 

g return on c~n equity for Gulf Power ? 

10 A I used a two-stage, annually compounded discounted cash fl ow 

11 COCf) IOdel and a risk pre•lu. analysis to deter•lne the 

12 required return on common equity . 

13 0 How did you apply these models to obtain Gulf Po~er' s cost 

14 of coamon equ i ty capital? 

15 A I conducted a OCf and a risk premium analysi s on an Index of 

16 high quality electri c utilities and adjusted the result s for the 

17 difference In risk between Gulf Power and the Inde x. Relying on 

18 an Index of companies, rather than a single comp~~y. helps 

19 •lnlmlze forecast,ng errors and should provi de more reliable 

20 Information for estimating the cos t o f common equity . 

21 0 Please descrtbe the Inves tment ri sk. charact eris t lcs of th" 

22 companies that c~rlse you r Index. 

23 A The Investment risk charact er istics for the lode• are : d 

24 

25 

Value Line Safety Rank of I; a Value Li ne be ta of . TO; dn S&P 

stock ranking of A; and an S&P and d Hoody '~ bond rdtlog of AJ, 

- 10-
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and Aa2, respectively . Scledu1es 4 provides the Investment risk 

characteristics for the lnoex . 

Q Briefly describe the models you used. 

A The discounted cash fl c11 110del Is the IIC>St ca-onl y u\ed 

.arket based approach for estlmatln~ a uti l ity Investor's 

expected return on equHy capHa 1. In a ocr ana 1 ys Is . the cost 

of equtty Is the dhcoont rate whi ch equates the present value 

of expected cash flows associated with a share of stock to the 

present prtce of the stock . 

A risk pr~lu• analysis recognizes that equity Is 

rtskter than debt . Equity Investors thus require a •ri sk 

premlu•• over the cost of debt a s compensation for assuming 

addHional risk. 

Q Hould you provide the equation and define the terms for the 

discounted cash flow model? 

A Yes, I will . This lnforaatlon Is provided on Schedule 7. 

Inheren t I~ this basi c model are sev~ral simplifying 

assumptions: I) dividends are paid annually and grow at a 

constant rate : 2) the price , Po, Is determined on a di vidend 

payment date; and 3) dividends Increase once a year st~rtlng 

exactly one year hence . 

Q Is Equation (4), Schedule 7, the OCF model you used to 

determl ne the cost of COfTIIIOn equl ty capita I? 

A No, It Is not . As ment ioned above. the basic Off model 

assumes that dl~idend growth rate Is constant over time . If . 
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however, the future growt h rate Is expected to change, d 

two-stage or variable growth rate model should be used . 

Equation (5) on Schedule 8, shows a two-s tage OCF 1110del . In the 

two-stage -ode! , divi dend growth Is estimate~ on an Individual 

basis for an Initial growth perl o1. Dividends are then assumed 

to grow Infinitely at the expected long- t erm growth rate . 

Q How did you use this .odel to determine the cos t of common 

equity capita l for the Index? 

A The current stock pr i ce CP0> wa s de term ined by averaging 

the high and the low stock price for Ap ril 1990 of each 

company. I first as sumed an Initial growth period based upon 

value L1ne's explicit di vidend forecasts (n) . I used ~lye 

L1ne's forecast of dividends for 1990 and 1993, and as sumed a 

constant rate of growth In between to estimate the expected 

dividends <Ot> during the Initial growth period . The 

long-ten. constant rate of growth expected after 1993 (gn) was 

cal culated by the earnings retention method <b x r approach > 

using value Line ' s expected return on equ ity <r> and expect ed 

retention rate {b) for 1993 . 

Q Does your OCF calculati on Include an allowance for Issuance 

costs? 

A Yes , It does. Hi stor i cally , utility unde• wrltl ng expen ~ c ~ 

associated with l ssL:ng common stoc~ hav e ave raged 3 to 4 

percent of gross proceeds. Therefore. I believe a 31 adjustment 

to the ocr calculation to account for Issuance cos t Is 
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appropr1ate . <See, Pettway, R.H., "A Note on the flotatl0n 

Costs of Ntw Equ1ty Clp1tal Issues of Electri c COmpan ies· . 

Public Uttltttes fortnightly , March 18 , 1982 pp . 68-69 . ) 

Equatton (6), Schedule 8, Includes the adjust.ent for Issuance 

costs. 

Q Hhat 1s the cost of ca..on equity for the Index companies 

based upon your t~stage, annually compounded OCF MOdel ? 

A Solving Equation (6) on Schedule 8, produces a cos t of 

c~ equ1ty for the index of 11 . 301. Schedule 9 contains the 

1nputs and r~sults of my analysis . 

Q Please describe the risk pr&mtu~ analysts. 

A The junior position of equity relative to debt adds 

additional uncertainty to the return of equity owner s. Equity 

owners require ca.pensatlon for this added risk . A risk premium 

analysts quantlftes th i s additional co.pensatton and add s It to 

the cost rate of debt to then estimate the cost of common 

equtty. The equation expressing the bast e risk premi um model Is 

contained on Schedule 10. 

Q How did you beg1n the r1 sk pre.lu• anal ysis ? 

A I re11ed upon the risk pre.lu• study prepared by the st aff 

of the Finance Bureau . The analys is fir st used the ocr 

~thodology discussed above to est imate the expected ~ r~e t 

return for the Index for each month from J~ne 1980 througt1 Hay 

1990. 

Q How 1s the equity-debt risk premlu• measured? 

- 13-
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A For each aonth of the ~ertod, the expected return on common 

equ1ty ~as co.pared to the then current yield on long- term 

gover~nt bonds, as reported by Moody's . to determine the risk 

premlu. for c~n equity over the yield ot long-term government 

bonds . 

Q Hhat Is your estimate of the equity-debt risk premium for 

the Index? 

A As sho~n on Schedule 11, the equity-debt risk premi um for 

the Index average 3. 1651 over the period 1980-1990. 

Q Hhat ••asure of debt cost did you add to the risk premi um to 

detenalne the cost of equity? 

A I used the May 1, 1990 Blue (blo financial foreta$ts' <Blue 

Chip) consensus forecast for long-term government bond yields 

for the coalng year of 8 . 475~. Blue Chip Is a publ ica t ion that 

provides Interest rate forecasts from 50 lead ing financial 

forecasters . 

0 Hhat Is the risk pre•lu• cost of c~n equity for the lnde• ' 

A As sho~ on Schedule 10, combtn lng the average expected 

yield on long-ter• government bonds of 8 . 475~ ~lth the 

equity-debt risk l)rMium of 3. 1651 result s In a ri sk premium 

cost of equity of 1 1 . 65~ <rounded) for the Index. 

0 Based upon your OCF analysis and your risk premium analys is. 

~hat Is your conclusion as to the cost of common equity for the 

Index? 

A Based upon my DCf and risk premi um analyses, I believe the 

- 14-
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cost of common aqulty for the Index Is wlth1n the range of 

11 .301 to 11 .651. 

0 Is this result an appropr iate ~easur 2 of the cost of common 

equity to Gulf Power? 

A No, It Is not . The cost of com~n equity for an Index of 

companies possessing the r i sk characie rl • tl cs dls ~us sed ear lier 

and Illustrated on Schedule 4 Is, In my estimate. between 11. 301 

and 11.651. However, In my opinion, Gu lf Power Is riskier than 

the Index and should therefore be allowed a higher cos t of 

equ1ty. 

0 Have you exa.lned the Investment risk cha racteristics of 

Gulf Power? 

A Yes, I have . Schedule 6 shows Gu l f Power 's earned ret urns, 

coverage rat1os. percent AFUOC to net Income rati os and percent 

Internally generat~ funds ratios for the last f ive years . 

Schedule 5 provides financial rati os for •A• rated electric 

utilities and Schedule 4 , page 2 of 2 , provides the Informat ion 

necessary to compare the AA/Aa electric Index to Gul f ?~ver vl t h 

regard to debt leverage, return on equity, coverage ratio, 

percent of AFUOC to net Income, and percent of In t ernally 

generated fundt . 

0 In general, how does the Investment risk of Gulf Pover 

compare to that of the elect r ic Index? 

A Gulf Power Is riskier than the elec tri c Index. It has a 

lower bond rating, A/ A, as compared to an average Aa/AA for the 
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electric Index. This rat l n9 Is affected by such fa ctor\ as debt 

leverage and Interest coveraJe. As shovn on Schedules 4. 5. and 

6, Gulf Power has signif i cantly higher debt lev~rage and much 

lower lnt~rest coverago ratios than the Inde x. Additional ly, 

Schedule 5 shows th e equity r!tlo, debt levera~e. coverage 

rat io, and net cash flow tc capital spending for Gul f Pover and 

ca.parab le •A• rated elec trl · ut ilities. Relative to comparabl e 

•A• rated utilities Gul f Pover has a lower equi ty ratio. highe r 

debt leverage, and a lower coverage ratio. 

0 Hhat adjuscment have you made to reflect the d1 fference In 

risk between Gulf Power and the Index? 

A First , I used a bond ratln~ differential to estlmdte the 

addit ional return required by an "A" rate1 electric utility over 

the •AA• rated Index . As Indi cated on Schedule 12, the average 

spread between •AA• and "A" bonds has been approxl ~te ly 30 

basis points over the past 60 ~nths. Adding thi s spread to the 

Index's cost of equity range or 11 . 301 to 11 .65t re sults In a 

cost of equity range or 11.601 to 11 .95t . I believe that. 

generally , a bond yield di f ferential Is a reasonable method to 

estimate the dif ference In the cost of common equity ~hen 

examining c~anles of differen t bond ratings. Hovever. given 

Gulf Power ' s lower equ ity ratio, higher debt leverage, and lower 

coverage ratio relative to comparable "A" and "AA" rat ed 

electr ic utiliti es. I believe an additional premium. frcm the 

top or the adjusted range, Is warranted to ar r ive at Gulf 
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Power's cost of c~n equity . 

2 As shown on Schedule 14, applylnq a 12 .25t retu rn on 

3 coemon equity , 30 basis points abovt the top of the adju~ted 

4 range, results In a preta1· times Interest earned ~Tl£) ratio and 

5 pretax cost of capital comparabic to that which would have been 

6 Incurred by Gulf Power If their debt leverage and equity rat io 

7 were sl•llar to th~ average of the util i ties ca-rr l slng the "A" 

8 rated Index. The r esulting TIE ratio also compares f~vora b l y 

9 with other •A• rat~d electric ut ili ties and wi th the benchmark 

10 gu1dellnes provided by S&P. 

11 0 Why did you use annually co.pounded, rather than quarterly 

12 co.pounded, models In your analysis to determine the cos t of 

13 co-non equity capital to Gulf Power? 

14 A In Docket No. 880558-EI, the eo..lsslon exp ressed t heir 

15 opinion that the specificity obtained by recognizing the effects 

16 of co.poundlng to determine the cost of equity was an 

17 unnecessary reflne.ent. Therefore, I have conducted an anal ysi s 

18 using annually ca.pounded models, the results of whi ch. In my 

19 opinion, approximate the appropriate point at whi ch ra tes should 

20 be set to meet Investor ret urn requirements. 

21 0 Please continue. 

22 A In my opi nion , the use of models that accurately ref lect th e 

23 receipt and timing of cash flows provides a bette r e ~ t lma t e of 

24 the cost of equity. However , using the results deri ved from a 

25 quarterly OCF .ad€1 without making a ratemaklng ra t e of re t urn 

-17-
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adj us taent Is Inconsistent . The ratemaklng rate of ret urn 

2 &djust .. nt recognizes the time v&lue of money associated ~lth 

3 tht Company's monthly receipt of revenues . It Is Incon sistent 

4 to selectively recognize the time value associated vlth the 

S Investor's quarterly receipt or divi dends. through use of a 

6 quarterly model. and then not reco~~1ze the time value 

7 associ&ted v1th the Coep&ny's monthly rece i pt or revenues . 

8 Ignoring the Company's monthly rectipt of revenues. as ref lected 

9 in the 13-month average equity balance, overestimates the point 

10 at vhich rates should be stt. 

11 Q Hh&t Is your recommendAtion regarding the appropriate 

12 regul&tory treat .. nt of non-utility related property and 

13 non-regulated substdltrles7 

14 A I rtc~tnd non-util i ty property •nd non-regul ated 

15 subsidiaries be removed from the capital structure direct ly from 

16 equity unless the Company can shov. through compet ~nt evidence. 

17 that to do othervlse vould result In a more equitable 

18 deten~lnatl on or the cost of capital for regulatory purposes . 

19 Q In .atlng thi s recommendati on are you assum ing t ne 

20 lnvest .. nt In non-regulated assets can be traced directly to 

21 equity funds? 

22 A No . Assets cannot be associated vlth spec lf~c sourc es of 

23 funds . Funds are fungibl e. 

24 Q If funds cannot be traced, vhy do you recommend, In the 

25 absence of persuasive evidence to the contrary , non-regulated 
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property and non-regulated subs\d\arles be removed from equity? 

A I recommend th\s treat•ent for two reasons. The first Is 

the bas\c principle that the cost of capita l al lowed for 

ratemaking purposes should be the cost of capital associ ated 

w\th the prov\sion of ut\1\ty serv\ce . Th~ second relates to 

the signals and incentives sent to the companies. 

0 Please continue . 

A The cost of capital h the •\nhDUIII rate of return necessary 

to attract capital to an Investment . It Is a function of the 

risk of the Investment . The greater the r\sk the greater the 

return investors require. 

Regulated ent\tits art of relatively low risk and have 

correspondingly low costs of capital . There are very few 

investments a regulated company can make that are of equal or 

lower risk. Therefore, investments in non-regulated 

subsldiarits w\11 almost certa\nly increase a regulated 

util\ty's cost of capital . Tht effects may be dif ficult to 

quantify, but the fundamental risk-return relationship points to 

the\r existence . It is Important that these effects be removed 

from the Company's ovtrall cost of cap\tal In order that 

ratepayers are charged only for the cost of capital associated 

with the provision of regulated service. 

Removing the effects of \nvestments In non-utility 

property can present a more difficult problem. For etample, \t 

.. y be difficult to quantify the cost of c•pltal &ffects 
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assoctated wtth a ut\1\ty ott\cer's purchase of an automobllr 

for personal use . In th\s c\rcum~tance, I believe the signals 

and \ncent\ves assoc\ated with the tom.\ss\on ' s po l\c \es should 

be of prhaary concern . If a •Jt\llty can f1 nanc~: non-utl l l~y 

property at the ut\1\ ty's cost of cap\tal rather than at market 

rates, 1t wl 11 have every econocal c I ncent I vt to do so. If tt. \ s 

ts allowed to occur, ratepayers w\11 be subsld\zlng, through 

capttal costs, tnvestcaents not necessary tor tht p1ov\slon or 

regulated servtct . 

0 Hhat ts your position as to the appropriate regulatory 

treat .. nt of cash and temporary cash Investment balances ? 

A In •Y opinion, the appropriate regulatory treatment of 

etthtr continuing cash balances or temporary t ash \nvestments 

should depend upon their prudency. If the utility c~n 

dt.anstr&tt, through competent evidence, that their cash 

balances or temporary cash lnvest.ents are necessary tor the 

provtslon of regulated utility service they shou ld remai n in 

rate bast and earn at the utility's overall rate or ret urn . Any 

earnings generated by these funds should then be used to offset 

revenue requlr.-ents. In general, snort-term \nvestments can be 

expected to earn less that the ut\llty's overal l cost of 

capital . Therefore, a blanket policy of ex cl uding temporary 

cash lnvest .. nts fra- rate base could result In an asset. 

potentially necessary for the provision or regulated service, 

earning less than a fatr rate of return . 
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However, If the uti lity falls to demons trate the 

prudency of e1ther their temporary cash Investment s or 

contlnu1ng cash balances, they should be removed directly from 

equity when reconc111ng the capital ) tructure with rate base . 

Such treatment removes the capital structure Imp lications of 

excess1ve cash or temporary cash Investments . In a c~et l tlve 

env1ron .. nt the cost of poorly managed cash resources cannot be 

passed through to custa-ers, Instead, shareholders bear the 

cost . S1•11ar treatment by the Commi ssion would mirror the 

competlt1ve environment and send appropriate signals to utility 

owners and managers regarding cash balances and work ing capital 

allowances . 

0 Please su~r1ze your testimony. 

A The purpose of •Y testimony vas to determine th e ~pproprl ate 

cost of common equ1ty capital for Gulf Power to use In 

determln1ng an appropr1ate allowed overall rate of return. 

also discussed the appropriate regulatory treatment cf 

non-utll1ty property and non-regul ated subsidiaries, temporary 

cash Investments , and continuing cash balances when reconc i li ng 

rate base and capital struc ture . 

Us1ng the widel y accepted discounted cash f low and risk 

premium .. thodologles I estimated a cost of common equity range 

of 11 .001 to 11 .501 for an lnde• of MAa/AaM rat ed electric 

ut111tles. 1 then adjusted t his range to account for the 

difference In risk between Gulf Power and t he Index . 
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deter•tned that Gulf Pover ' s cost of common equity fe ll wl hln a 

range of 11.301 to 12.101. Given Gu lf Power's higher debt 

leverage, lower equity ratio, and lower coverage rat io relative 

to both the •AA- and •A• Indicts I cl&mlntd, It Is •Y opinion 

that the top of the range, 12 . 101 best represents Gulf Power ' s 

cost of coaaon equtty capthl . Schtdult 15 su~m~&rlzes 11y 

conclusions regarding tht cost of common equity capital. 

I also recommend that non-utility property and 

non-regulated subsidiaries bt re-aved from the capital structu re 

directly from equity unless the company can show, through 

competent evidence, that to do otherwlst would result In a more 

equttablt determination of the cost of capital for regulatory 

purposes. In addition, I recaa.end that. absent a showing of 

their prudency, te~orary cash lnv&stments and continui ng cash 

bahncei bere-aved directly fr011 equity when reconciling the 

capital structure vlth rate bast . 

0 Does this conclude your testleony? 

A Yes, 1t does . 
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1 MR. VANDIVER: Staff would c a ll Robert 

2 Freeman. 

3 Co111111isaioners , at this time I'd lixe to pass 

4 out an errata sheet from the audit . I think it would 

5 be quicker than go ing through it on the stand . A clean 

6 copy of the audit has been provided t o the court 

7 reporters and counsel were given this last we~k . 

B 

9 

10 

MR. STONE: Mr. Vandiver? 

MR. VANDIVER: Yes? 

MR. STONE: Would you have any objec tion to 

11 making the errata sheet also an exhibit, in addition to 

12 the clean copy, just so that the record is c lear that 

13 those were the changes made? That's the essence of 

14 what is done about your errata is read from the stand. 

15 

16 

17 e xhibit? 

18 

MR. VANDIVER: I have no objec t i on . 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Do we need to make that a n 

MR. STONE: Co11111issioner , I think it he lps in 

19 making sure that things are kept clear. 

20 

21 

24! 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: All right , 61 3. 

MR. PRUITT: I have 612, Hr. Chairman . 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: All right, 612. Was th~re 

23 an exhibit dc. in9 Hr . Pollock's testimo ny? There 

24 wasn't, was there? All right. You're correct, 612 is 

25 the next exhibit number. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMM ISS ION 
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1 (Exhibit No. 612 received into evidence ). 

2 ROBERT FREEMAN 

3 war called as a witness on behalf of the Florida Public 

4 Service Commission and, having been first duly sworn , 

5 testified as follows: 

6 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

7 BY KR. VANDIVER: 

8 Q 

" ple ase? 

A 

Q 

pretiled 

A 

Q 

make to 

A 

Q 

Could you state your name for the recora, 

My name is Robert Freeman. 

Did you cause to be filed three pages of 

testimony in this case? 

Yea, sir, I did. 

Do you have any additions or corrections to 

those three pages? 

No, air. 

If I were to ask you those questions would 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

1"1 

18 

19 

20 

your answers be the suae( 

A Yea, they would. 

MR. VANDIVER: Mr. Chairman , I IAOVe fo r the 

21 insertion of his testimony as though read . 

22 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Without objection it wil l 

23 be so inaerte~ into the r ecord. 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

Have you been previous ly sworn , Kr . f reeman? 

Yea, air, I have. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMI SSI ON 
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1 (Witn••• Preaaan'• Exhibit• No. 382 and 384 

2 stipulated into evidence.) 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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2 Q. Hould you please state you r n~ and business address? 

3 A. Robert Al an Free.an, 101 Ease Gai nes St reet. 

4 Tallahassee , Flor1da, 32399-0865 . 

5 Q. By whom are you HPloyer:? 

6 A. The Flor1da Pub l1c Servi ce Commi ssion . 

7 Q. How long have you bean employed? 

8 A. S1nce February 10, 1982 . 

9 Q. Hould you state your educat iona l background and 

10 exper1ence7 

11 A. I rece1ved a Bachelor of Science Degree with a mdjor In 

12 Account1ng from Flor1da Statt Un1verslty In August 1974. Aft er 

13 graduat1on I wu flll)loyed by Peat. Muwlck. HI t che ll . CPA· s . In 

14 May , 1976 I became empl oyed with the State of Florida, join ing 

15 the Public Serv1ce Commission In February 1982 . 

16 Q. Are you a certified publ ic accountant? 

17 A. Yes. I received my certificate from the Florida State 

18 Bo?rd of Accountancy In February , 1976 . 

19 Q. Hhat are your responsibilities as a Comm ission empl oyee' 

20 A. I am a regulatory audit supervisor for the Tallahass ee 

21 Audit Dls tr1 ct . I control and direct all aud its In the north 

22 Florida dhtr1ct wh ich ranges from Per.sacola to Jacksonville . 

23 Audits are ass igned to me by my superv isor. Fra nk Doud. Depu ty 

24 D1rector of the Division of Auditing & Financi al Ana lysl ~ . 

25 Q. Have you test ified In any previ ous Florid~ Pu~ll c 
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4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

A. 
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Yes, In three dockets . 

820158-NS --Intracoastal Ut il ities regarding Va luat ion 

of an Acquisition Adjustment . 

820067-HS -- Ferncrest Utilities regarding providing an 

Allowance for Funds Pruder.tlv Invested (AFP I ). 

870981-HS --Hiles Grant Hater and Sewer Company 

regarding failure to p ~operly depreciate utility plant . 

Hhat other type of work have you performed for Florida 

State govern-.nt? 

A. A sevtn page rtsulllt Is provided <Exhibi t (RAF-3-3JJ > 

which describes my professional, accounting and auditing 

13 experience . Since February 1988, my responsibilities have 

14 Included planning, controlling and, In some Instances. prepar ing 

15 Internal accounting reports for use by Commlsslo~ Staff. The se 

16 reports are coamonly referred to as ·audits" . 

17 

18 

Q. What Is the purpose of your test imony In this case? 

A. I'M sponsoring the rate case audit repor t as flied with 

19 the Division of Records and Reporting In Docket 871167-tl as 

20 Exhibit (RAF-105~) <composite). I ' 111 al so sponsoring 

21 Exhlbl t (RAF-2 ...:3'0.3> whi ch Is the rate case aud l t of Gut f 

22 Power Company In Docket No. 891345-fl . Exhib i t < RAF-2~~ 

23 will be filed and served on all parties as soon as the audit 

24 report Is c~pleted and Gulf Power Company has had an 

25 opportunity to revi ew the stated facts for errors or omissions . 
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Q. Here both of these audits conducted under your 

2 superv\s\on and control? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. Does th1s conclude your testimony? 

5 A. Yes \t does. 

6 (End of Prefiled Oirect Testim:x'ly) 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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MR. VANDIVER : Com:nissioners, I believe the 

2 audits speak for themselves. In the spirit of Mr. 

3 Burgess, I'l l just tender the witness to c ross. 

4 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Ah, yes , the sp l rit o f Mr . 

5 Burgess walks these halls ~t night . 

6 

7 

8 

the movie. 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: I'm go:ng t o wait t or 

(I.auqhter) 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: I have t he sound track. 

9 It's really -- (Laughter) 

10 

11 

MR. BURGESS: I do~'t have any questions . 

MAJOR ENDERS : No questions . 

12 CROSS EXAMINATION 

13 BY MR. HOLLAND: 

14 0 Mr. Freeman, would you agree that t he 

15 purpose ot the audit which you performed was t or the 

16 benefit of the Elec tric and Gas Department , and was , i n 

17 tact , c o nduc ted at their request? 

18 

19 

A 

0 

Yes, sir. 

Would you agree that an audit exc epti o n is a 

20 finding made during the course of your aud i t, t hat 

21 there is an error i n the books and records that 11e e d s 

22 to be corrected? 

23 

24 

A 

0 

That's correct. 

And a disc l o sure, on the o th3 r hand is a 

25 finding that you made that, in your opin ion, migh t 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMI 3S IO~ 



1 dictate further examination by the t .he Start of the 

2 Electric and Gas Department? 

Th~t's also correct. 

2974 

3 

4 

A 

Q Would you also agree -- well , let me ask you 

5 this: Your audit contains two excepti~ns, ~oes it not? 

6 

7 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir, it d~s. 

Would you agree that an audit of the 

8 magnitude which you conducted that contains only two 

9 exceptions is a good audit from the perspec~ive of Gulf 

10 Power Company? 

11 Not necessarily. Hany times industry staff 

12 c an make adjustments in a case based upon a disclosure; 

1 3 so, the refore, if you had smal l exceptions I wouldn't 

14 necessarily consider it a good audit . If you had no 

15 except i ons and no disclosures it would be an excellent 

16 audit . But a disclosure def initely could lead t o a 

17 material adjustment. 

18 Q A Cisclosure could lead, but would not 

19 necessarily lead to an ad j ustment, and the only 

20 adjustment that -- adjustments that you are 

21 recommending absolutely should be made are the t wo 

22 exceptions, is that correct? 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

25 correct? 

Yes, and I believe they were both made . 

And they both have been made, is that 
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1 A Well, one was reported as made; the o ther one 

2 we observed and it was aade. (Pause ) 

3 Q Okay. In your audit that yo•1 performed, you 

4 comaented on a nuaber of occasions with respec t to the 

5 plent accounting system, and the qtJe~r'cion that I have 

6 is direc ted toward the exit conference wh~re the 

7 disclosures were diacua~ed. And as I reco llection you 

8 stated that you did not take exception to the 

9 appropriateness of the plant accounting system or the 

10 work order system, but that the system that is in plac e 

11 at Gulf Power Company did not, within the t ime frame ot 

12 your audit, given the tiae that you had to do the 

13 audit, enable you to conduct the full audit that you 

14 would have liked to. Is that accurate? 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

Yea, air, that's correct . 

Okay. And the audit that you, or the 

17 methodology which you have proposed in the d i sc l osure , 

18 would you agree that it is a filing system , a wo rk 

19 order filing systea? 

20 A Primarily that was the gist o t the 

21 disclosure . Naturally, everyt hing would have t o be 

22 integratod into the reports as well. 

23 0 What you are s uggesting that be done i s t o r 

24 Gulf Power Coapany to aaintain in a c entral l oc ation , 

2 5 in one file drawer or if it takes two t i le drawers , all 
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1 the work orders, projecc origination notes, completion 

2 notes , drawings , memoranda , et cetera , re lated to a 

3 particula r project , ia that correct? 

4 A That would be one solut ion. The Company may 

5 be able to co .. up with acceptabl*' aiternatives . For 

6 exaaple, aa I recall, the Coapany indicated the price 

7 ot d oing that waa around 300,000. For 300, 000 we could 

8 probably hire the auditors and get it done tor probably 

9 leas than that. 

10 Another method that also might be acceptable 

11 may be it we could coordinate our efforts a little bit 

12 bette r with the FERC, but that \.·:Juld still leave me 

13 with the proble•, in that I go into a 1989 test year 

14 and I have $73 •illion to audit. It takes a long time 

15 to audit $73 •illion. Particularly if I h~ve lo go t o 

1 6 a nuaber ot tiles to look at the documents . 

17 

18 

Q 

A 

Okay. 

It'• just a tiDe problem. But there could be 

19 more than one answer. 

20 Q You are aware, and I th i nk have acknr>wledged 

21 that the plant accounting system of Gulf Power Company 

22 has been audited by your audit stat! previously, by the 

23 Federal Energy Regulatory CoJDJDission auditore, by 

24 internal auditors and by Southern Company Services, 

25 have you not? 
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I would agre~ with that with the exception of 

2 the tact that our auditors, to a great deal , have 

J relied o n other auditors to take a look at the work . 

4 We real ly have not gone thro ugh d full examinatio n ot 

5 the plant recorda , to my knowledge, ~t least sinc e 

6 1983. 

7 Q You would agree, would you not , that the 

B tindinga ot thoae internal and external audits have not 

9 detected any type of overall weakness in the interna l 

10 control atructure, nor in the plant accounting system? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

1 6 

17 

18 

A None that I'm aware of. 

MR. HOLLAND: That ' s all I have. 

MR. VANDIVER: Staff has no red i re~t. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON : Questions, Commissioners? 

Thank you very much . 

(Witness Freeman excu&ed ) 

MR. VANDIV~: Staff would call Rober ta Bass. 

19 ROBERTA S . BASS 

20 was called aa a vitnesa on behalf of the Florida Pub l ic 

21 Service Co-iaaion and, having been first duly s worn, 

22 testified aa follows: 

23 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

24 BY MR. VANDIVER: 

25 Q Could you state your name t or the recor a, 
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please? 

My name is Rober~a s. Bass . 

1 

2 

3 

A 

Q Did you cause to be filed in this docket 16 

4 pages of direct testiaony? 

5 

6 

A 

Q 

Yea, I did . 

Do you have any addi tions or c~~rect ions t o 

7 make to t hat testimony? 

8 A No, I do not. 

9 Q If I were to ask you the questions contained 

10 in that testimony would your answers be the same ? 

11 

12 

A Yes, they would. 

MR. VANDIVER: Mr. Chairman, I would move fo:-

13 the insertion of Mrs. Bass's test iaony as though read . 

14 CHAIRMAN WILSON : Without objection it will 

15 be ao inserted into the record . 

16 (Witness Baas' Exhibits 386 and 387 

17 stipulated into the record .) 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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18 

19 

20 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 
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DIRECT TESTIMONY - ROBERTA S. BASS 

Ple.tse state your name and bus i nes s address. 

Jo(y na.e is Robt'rta S. Bass. Jo(}' bus1ness addres s Is 101 E. 

Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301. 

By whom are you employeo ana fn wnat Cdpacfty? 

am ~lllployed as an Economic Analyst in the Fuel 

Procure~~ent Bureau of the Dfvi sion of Ele<: t ric and Gas of 

the Florida Public Service Commission. 

What is your educational and professional background? 

I have a Bachelor of Sci~nce degree in Finance frcm 

Florida :itate University. I have been employed with tn t> 

Florida Public Service Commission since April 1983. 

What is the purpose of your testimony ? 

The purpose of ~ testimony is to discuss circumstances 

which may cast a cloud over the numbers subn:ftteo by Gut f 

Power C0111pany (Gulf) whi ch support its request f o r a ratt> 

increase . Essentially, these circumstances are the result 

of al legations made, and events t hat have occurred. since 

the Company's last rate case fn 1984 . 

How have you been made aware of t llese allegati ons and 

events? 
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A Trrere ha s been extensive news cove ra ge about Gulf J ver· the 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

l ast couple of years. In c!dd l t ion , St aff has conduc tea 

depositions, pr opounded lnterrogatones , obtained court 

pleadings and performed an a udi t of the Company. 

Please describe the al lega ti ons and events previously 

~~entfoned. 

To fac111tate understanding, I will lfst the allegations 

and events and t hen descrf be them i ndh I 11ua 11 y. They are 

as follows: 

1. Invent ory shortages of potentially l ?,OOO,OOO; 

2. Theft of inventory by Kyle Crof t ; 

3. A kick -back t o a Gu lf employee from a ( Ontract venaor; 

4. Gulf's continued business aealings wfth vendors once 
involved in schemes to defraud Gulf; 

5. Potential confli c t s of interest; 

6. Reca.mended dismi ssa l of Jacob Hort on; and 

7. Atlanta Feaeral Grand Jury. 

Please describe the possible lnventory shortage of 

$2, 000,000. 

Duri ng a wa rehouse audft In 1982 , a net loss of Sl O, OOO o f 

inventory wa s found. According to Gulf e).ecutlves, there 

wer e problems with the Inventory audi t because ce rta1n 

items were not tagged or Identified ana the warehouse 

gener a lly wa s f n a sloppy condition. In 1983 , another 
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audit was initiHed and found a net shortage of S!l , 462 o f 

inventory In the warenouse. Carol yn Sl nnon , a warehouse 

superviso r, testified In the Richard Leeper perj ury tria l 

and i n a staff·conducted deposi t lon that the 1 <J83 dud! t 

was Inaccurate because Gulf Pow£• .. had concealed dn 

enonoous shortage by counting ob sol e te and dama ged items 

as good I t ems In the Inventor y . She est1mated the actudl 

shortage at around $2,000, 000 . Gul f di spu tes th is amoun t 

and ma1nta1ns the net shortage of $8 ,642 Is co rrec t. 

Pl ease describe the theft of property by Kyle Cr of t. 

In late 1983, GuH President Doug McCrary rece ived an 

anonymoun 1 ett er hnp 11 cat i ng Ky 1 e Croft, Manager of 

General Services Operation, i n the theft o f Gu lf 

property. The author o f the letter stated t hat ne 

recognized Gulf employee s at the construct i on s1te of 

Croft's new home over the course of one year and r eported 

the lfcense numbers of Gul f trucks at the site . 

McCrary ordered a n investigati on , an audi t dnd an 

Inventory of Gulf w.srehOuses which revea led that Cr o ft wa s 

mi susi ng emp l oyees and converting company pr operty and 

supp II es f or his own use. 

estimated to be around S30C, OOO . 

~i sdppropr i atf ons were 

Hr. McCrary confronted Cr o ft who Cl~nied tne 

alleg.stions . Croft was given the opportunity tC' re sign 
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and when he refused to resign, he was ffr~d by Mr. 

McCrary. Croft appealed t o Jacob Hort on, Sen1or VI le 

!Jresident, to Intercede on h1s behalf. Mr. Horton 

persuaded Hr. McCrary to allow Cr oft to resign if he wou l d 

a<bft to s tea l ing approx1ma ';elv S16,000 1n supplie r. , 

equipment and l6bor and s1gn a promissory notP for a like 

amount. Gulf agreed nnt t o bri ng c iv il or crfm fnal ac tion 

against Croft or subject hi m to c1vfl l fa b l lfty to force 

pay~~ent of the prOCDissory note. To f!emonstrate the 

CQ~~Pany • s good fa I ttl, Hr . Hor t on s 1gnetJ a personal 

pr0111 ssory note to Croft for the ume amount. On February 

3, 1984, Croft agreed to these conditi ons and was Jllowta 

to resfgn. Croft fs now receiving hfs pension. 

Ofd Croft subsequently file a su i t against uul f r!'gara1 ng 

hfs resignati on? 

Yes. In 1986, Cr oft f11ed s uft against Gulf and six 

current and fonaer executives ; EdwJrd Addi son, J acob 

Horton , Ben Kickl fter, Alvin Vogtle, J r., Cha rl es Lambert , 

and Douglas McCrary . Th!' suft alleged conspiracy t o 

intentionally Int erfere witn a contractuc!l employment 

rela t ionship, extortion, c ivi l consp1rctcy t o <lefame , 1 1bel 

.snd c; lander, and t he inten tional 1nfl ic t1on of emotional 

di stress . As a remedy, Croft asked ~hat hi s res19natl on 

be r esci nded; the Sl 6, 000 pr om1s s _ry note be decl are<! 
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void; and for o ther direct and consequen tial damdges. 

Gulf filed a 1110ti\.•l for Su11111ary Judgntent wh ich wd s 

granted on July II, 1988. On August 10 , 1988 , Croft 

appealed the decision to the Fi r~ t Distr ict Cou rt o f 

Appea l (DCA) in Tallahassee. The DCA atfirmed the Sunmary 

Judgment. 

D1d Gul f conduct a further investigati on to determine if 

other were involved in misapproprldtions o f Comp<~ ny dsse ts ? 

Yes. The investigation reveal ed that J(lseph Lamar 

8razwe11, Supervisor of Support Services, was involved 1n 

4 schelle t o defraud Gulf o f $4 2 , 000. False invoice s har 

been sublllitted by West Fl orida Landscaping through 

Brazwe11. He resigned fn 1984, after IS year!> ... 1th 

Company and 1s not currentl y receiving a pension . Mr. 

Brazwell al so was part-owner, along with Richdrd leeper, d 

fomer employee of Gulf, of Reliable Electn c Dis tri buting 

Contpany ( REDCO). 

Another scheme involved tile theft of equ i pme nt dntl 

1ts ult11114te installation at mfl itar; bases by line Powe r 

Company. Croft had, and continues to have , a 40\ 

ownership interest 1n this company. 

Please di scuss the kick-back to d Gulf ~ployee from J 

contract vendor. 
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Peggy Miller, a partner in Self Winaow Cl ea ning , accused 

Mark Rubenacker, an accountant a t Gulf , of demanding S75J 

in kfck -backs .sfter her company w>n a $20,600 contract to 

wash windows twfce at Gu lf' s new headquarters building In 

1988. Hr . Rubenc1cker wc1 s alsm1 ~sed by Gu l f on Feb ruary 

24 , 1989. 

Does Gulf contfnue to do bus fness wfth vendors whO were 

once Involved fn schemes t o defraud Gul f? 

Gulf ha s represented that , effective December 31, 1988 , f t 

has dfscontfnued doing bus iness wfth t hree of the four 

coqpanfe s Involved fn schen~es t o de trc1ud Gulf. The three 

coap~nfes are Southern Scrap, Gu lf Coast Pa ving ana 

Gradfng, and REDCO Electrical Distr ibutors. Gul f 

continues t o do business wfth We st Flor ida Landscc1pin9. 

How much dfd Gulf pay these companf e~ fn 1987 ana 1988? 

We st Florida Landscapi ng was pa id S202 , 127 fn 1987 ana 

$231,234 fn 198A for landscaping services. Gu lf Coas t 

Pavfng ana Gradfng was paid $61, 066 in 1987 ana $44, 305 in 

1988. REOCO wa s pai d $115,492 ana 1987 and $174, 706 in 

1988. 

Have any ou t sfae agenci es conduc ted inves t fgc~t f on s of 

•fsapproprfatfons of Gul f asset ~? 
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A Yes. Around the same time Cr oft filed hiS suft, the 

lnterna I Revenue Servi ce ( IRS l an<l the FB I ::>egon 

1nvestfgat1ons. In 1988 , d Pt>nstcol a Gran<l Ju ry ino1cted 

Croft, Brazwell, and Lt>eper f o r e vading i ncome t 1ues on 

money fraudulently obtained f rom uul f. Cro ft plea gui I ty 

to tax chdrges for submi tting $40 , 000 in fra udulent bills 

t o Gulf. He received a f ou r -mon th sentence and il Sl U, :JOO 

ffne . Brazwell pled guil ty and received d nf ne-year 

sentence and $30,000 fine. Leepe r was convi c t ed of 

perjury tor lying to tne Grand J ury dnd n~ce1vec:l Ml 

eighteen mon th sentence. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A. 

As a resu lt o f the misapp ropr i ation of Gul f assets ~Y t wo 

employees, did Gulf tdke any correc ti ve actions ? 

Yes. Gulf implemented inventory dnd security pr ocedurt>s 

to provide better safeguards against further 

misappropriations. In add i tion, Gu lf ado~o~ted d Company 

Code o f Ethics. Part o f the implementa t ion o f the Code o f 

Et hics WdS a program to provide employees the ( onffden t ial 

opportun1 ty t o vo l untdr l ly llldke monetdry amends t o Gul f 

without fe t r of embarra ssment o r pun1ti vt> action. This 

program was call ed the Amnesty Pr og r am . 

Please describe the Amnesty Program. 

The program was initiated by Gulf exe.:utl ve s ana 
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admi nis t e r ed through t he Lev in Law Firm. The Amne sty 

Program wa s initiate<l on Jur.e 27 , 1984 a n<l was avai l ah l e 

t o all employees o f Gulf. Via a company !Ju lletin , Gu lf 

empl oyee s were Instruc t ed t ') c ont ac t t he Le vin Law Ffnn 

direc tl y , 1f they wished ~0 partf c l pa t e. The prog r am 

continued fn effect until September 30 , 1984. Payment s 

f rom e.ployees were made t o the law finn a nd de posi t ed in 

their escrow accou nt . The l aw f i nn per i od fc .s ll y remi tte <l 

refund checks fro~~ t he ir esc r ow accoun t t o Gu 1 f. Tile 1 ow 

finn remitted 9 pajment s t o Gulf over the pe ri od Augu s t 6 , 

1984 through Novellt)er 16 , 1984 t o t alling $1J ,1 24 . 2J . 

Wha t potentfal confli c t of I nterest wa s Identif i ed by the 

PSC dUd1tors? 

Mr. J. K. Tannehill is on t he Boa r d of Direc t or s o f ~u lf. 

He also f s an o fficer o f St ock Equ ipmen t Compa ny . Gul f 

pafd Stock Equipment $278 , 977 f n 1987 , $) 44, 791 in 1988 

a nd continue s t o do busine s s wi t h th is company . 

Oi<l the PSC audito r s spec if i c al ly rev f ew any uocument dtl on 

of tra nsac tions with St oc k Equ ipment Company ? 

Yes . The a uditors re viewed t r ansac ti ons and c ho se t o 

trace three invoices back t o the c ompa ny ' s bid l ist t o 

ensur e that t he l owes t prf c e wa s paid f or the mercM,Cl1 s~ 

spec ff i e <1 . 
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Were the ctuditors able to do this ? 

The aud itors wer~ i nfonned by Gu If ll1dt two of the 

invo ices selected were not !lf!l bccctu\e the maf ntenctnce on 

the pl a nts in question :ould only be done by St ock 

Equipment Compctny because the m.tchines to be wo rked on 

were their llklChfnes and only t'•ey cou l a work on the f r 

machines. 

What about the •hird invoice? 

The th1rd invoice was traced bctck t o a bld packctge . There 

was only one other bid and 1t wets approximcttely twic e as 

much as the Stock bid. However, Gulf could not furnfs ll d 

11st of vendors who were notified about the projt>c t nor 

could the auditors verify how many notices, if any, we re 

sent out describing the work that was needed. 

What is your opinion of these transact i ons ? 

I don't beli<?ve a utility should be prohibited from doing 

business with a compct ny wnich Shdre s a COiifllOn o ff ic er, 

director or em;>loyee. However, s fnce the potenti a l for a 

conflict of interest exist s , the utility s hOu ld ma i nta in 

sufficient documentation of tne tra nsctction so that I • c an 

prove without a doubt thdt the tran S<\ Cti on -..as c1r1 

ctnms-length transact1on. 



~ 

J 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

1 7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

2988 

0 Please desc ribe the reco~nded dismi ssal of J acob l~rton . 

A 

Q 

A 

J acob Horton wa s a Senior Vice Presi dent o f Gu t f. fie was 

killed i n a Southern Company pl 4ne c rash on Aprfl 10, 

1989. The cause of the plane cras h is stfll under 

investiga t i on by the ctpproprfate f eder dl cSgencie~ . Ju~t 

prior t o the crash, Mr. Horton attc~~~d a meeting at Gul f 

with Gulf President McCrctry and Or. Reed Be l l, dn outside 

director of Gulf and c hairman of the audit c orrm1ttee o f 

the board . At the llleeting Mr. Horton was all<>g<>dly t o l a 

that the audft committee had recomnended hi s di smi ssal. 

An article 1n the Pensacola News Jou rndl s tdtea that 

according to a prepared statement by the Company , "Mc Crdr'y 

and Bell discussed with Horton the audit c ommittee's 

concern over Horton's pos s tole circumvention of compdny 

policies and procedures and his supervision of t he 

processing of invoices from vendors. " 

Ple~ se describe the Federal Grand J ury investigati on . 

In 1988, the Atlbntct Federal GrancJ Jury be gdn dn 

investigation base d on dn lnte rna I Revenue Serv !ce report 

alleging that top financia l officers of Sou thern Company 

and its subsidiaries, whi c h i ncludes Gulf Powe r, h~ Ye 

conspired with the accounting finn of Arthur Andersen dn<l 

Company since 1982 t o avoid paying tens of mi ll i ons o f 

dollars in fe deral Income t axes. The .1l leged con spi racy 
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w~s accompl i shed by establi s hing an "off-t ne-books-scheme " 

to hfde the exis~nce of spa re p~rts. It ctl so has been 

all eged th~t the Grand J ury 's investigati on hots been 

expanded to incl ude a review of f'o lfti ca l A<. t lon 

C~fttees establi s hed by emp loyee s o f Gulf. Nume rous 

employees of Gulf and SOflle vendors suppl y ing goods aM 

services to Gulf nave been s ubpoen4t::l t o te st f fy be t o r e 

the Grand J ury. 

Have the results of the Grand Jury tnves tf gcttlon oeen 

released? 

Ho. The report of the Gra nd J ury is not ever re leased t o 

the publfc. The Grand Jury either fssues an indi c tment or 

remains s ilent as to the frfonnati on presented t o them. 

However , as .s result of the Gra nd J ury fn vest fg.stf on , on 

Oc t ober 30 , 1989, Gulf pled guilty to two cou nts : I) 

making contributions t o v4rfous pol ftfcctl c 4ndf d4tes on 

the loc.tl , state .tnd n.atfona l IPvel s; and, 21 fmpcJiring. 

impeding and obstructing the Internal Revenue Se rvtce in 

fts audit function and in the ascertainment a na co ll ec u on 

of income taxes. 

Were the contributions to polftfcal candida tes a1 rer: tl y 

made? 

No. Outsi de vendor s were asked t o make con tn butlons t o 
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vctrious cctmpaigns a"'! candidctte~ . On some occas ion s , the 

vendors were asked t o submit tnef r contri bu ti ons t.o Gul t 

Power for disbursa l t o the cctndlelcltes , whi le on o ther 

occasions, the vendors ~re askeo to tran smi t thei r 

contributi ons di rectly to the c anelfdc~te. Reg.srcll e:; s of 

how the contributions ~re ~ r .t :1smlt ted , many of tht' 

vendors involved submitt.ed , at the direction of Gulf 

employees , fa lse or fnflateo invoi ce s in order t o recover 

the ctmount of the po l iti ca l contr ibuti on . 

Which vendors ~re Involved in this situa t ion ? 

According to the plea agreement , Gul f dfrectt'O money t o 

the 1988 Sta t e Senate campdfgn of W.O. Chi lde r s through 

its payments to Design Assoc i ates , Inc . 

was not identified in the plea agreement. 

1988, Gulf paid $379 ,892 to Design 

However, auri ng 

Associates f or 

services. Gulf has filed ct complaint In Escdmbla Lounty 

Circ uit Cou'"t charging t ha t Design Associ.tte s overchd r gpa 

Gut f for services rende red ana expenses i ncurrert dncl tndt 

not all servh.es and expenses lnvolceo were rendered . 

Wha t other vendor s were Invol ved ? 

The Dicit Leonara Group I I , Inc . wds I nstructeo to makt 

campaign contribution s to spec ff1 eo candidates in 1984, 

1985, 1986, 1987 , and 1988 ctncl t o submit i nfldted I nvoices 
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to Gulf in order t o be r e imbursed for t hose 

contr1 but1ons . Gu lf Instructed the J ohn App leya r d Age ncy 

t o make polit ical contributions t o spec fffecJ c dndfdat~ s 

during 1982, 1983, c~nd 1984. The cnntrfbut fons were 

funded by Gulf through fts monthly pdyment s of $1,000 -

$2, 000 to a "specfdl produc ti on f1 1i'" :<od fntdfnecl dt the 

Appl eyard Agency. 

Gu lf also instruc ted Hemmer & Yc~te s lo mc~ke po lltl c c~l 

contrfbutfons to spec 1 ff eel ca ntil dates. These 

contrfbuttons were funded, In part, through d monthly 

retainer of $2, 000 pa 1d t o t he agency during the years 

1985, 1966 dOd 1987. 

What was the total amount con tr i buted to pol 1t ic c~ l 

candiddtes and bil l ed t o Gulf? 

The total a.aunt identif i ed in the pled cSgreemen t wd 5 

$22 , 850 . Exhf bit RSB-1 (£xh.,3g ~ prowl des a bredk cJown o f 

thi s amount by year cSnd vendor. 

Pl ease describe the sec ond count In the pl ea dgreemen t . 

The second count fs sf mflar t o the fir s t. Howeve r , I n 

this case, Gulf employees In s truc ted some of 1 t s ou t s i de 

vendors to submit false or Inflated Invo i ce s t o Gu lf t o 

reimburse those vendors fo r pc1yment s mc1de t o o t hers a t t he 

elfrtctfon of Gul f Power . 
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3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

I I 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

1 7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Which vendors were invol ved in th fs si tuat ion and whdt 

were the payments ultimately for? 

During the period 1981 to 1984 , the Appleyc1rd Agency 

b111 ed Gu 1 f approx I l1ld te I y S39 , 000 as spec fa I product f on 

fees which were 3ctual ly r e imbu rsemen t s f or va rious 

expenditures to others llldde at Gulf' s dfrP~ tl on. Exhib it 

RSB-2 (Exh.-..3~7) provides a breakdown o f thl s amou.1t anl1 

the purpose of the expenditure . 

The Henner and Yat,es agency expended appr oximate! y 

$24,000 to others at Gu lf 's direc tion du ring the period 

1983 t o 1986. The reh1bursement of these expen<'~ftures 

we re billed to Gu l f as miscellaneous expenses associated 

with advertising, public relations ana marketlny. Ex111 b1 t 

RSB-2 (Exh. 387 I prov1aes tl1e de UI11s o f tl1est:' 

expenditures. 

The Dfck Leonard Gr oup billed Gulf SI O, OOO as cos t s 

and expenses associated with photography and produc ti on of 

televisi on spots relating t o Gulf Powe r projects t o secu re 

reimbursement for payments made t o others dun ng tt-e 

peri od 1983 to 1988. Exhibit RSB-2 ([xl1. ,illl provide s 

t he deta i ls of these expenditures. 

Did Gulf recefve a sentence as the "'esu lt o f tl1 1s p lea 

agreement? 

Yes. Gu lf was fined $500 , 000 as thel~ sentence. In 
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12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 
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24 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 
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addition, Gulf agre-ed t hat t he f 1ne Imposed In t hfs CdSe 

wou ld not be pai d by, or pa ssed through t o, I t s ratepayer s . 

Were t here any Gulf empl oyees fden ~ fffed In the plea 

agreement as being lnvol'led In the reimbursement pr oces s 

of fa1 s1f1ed vendor Invoi ces? 

Yes . The p lea agreement I nd i cate:. thdt G•df , In enter ing 

a plea of guilty, ack no~ledges and accepts it s 

respons1b111ty for the unauthor i zed and lllegcJl actl vftles 

of 1ts senior vice-presi dent and Boa r d membe r, Jake 

Horton, and other emp loyees, Doug Knowles and Ray 

Ya rborough. 

What is the employment statu s of Mr . Knowle s cJ nd Mr. 

Yarborough with respect t o Gu lf? 

Hr. Knowl es res igned Oc t ober 30 , 1989 and Mr. Ya rborough 

retired October 31, 1989. 

Do you have any additi onal commen t s you wi sh to make? 

Yes. Although collusion and management ovprride can 

circumvent and render Ineffec t ive even the stricte st 

Internal controls, t he c r lmln.ll ac t iv ity documented a s 

having occu rred at Gul f Power extended over a period of 

approximately e ight years. The i nability of Gut f 

management t o di scover and correct these overt lllegdl 
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3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

I 7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

~99 4 

actions leads me to bel 1 ? VC thdt the corporate cu i tur~ was 

such that employ~es believe<l these types of Illega l 

acti ons were, dt the ledst, condoned by t op management. 

After reviewing the a!>ove infonnatf on, whdt ac tf on do you 

reconnend that the C011111ission take? 

The fnforaatfon recounUd above establi sht>s a patttrn of 

continuous and serious mi smana gemen t o f thi S utflf ty f or 

at least a period of efght years. AI though Gulf has 

worked hard fn the recent past to el fmfndte many of the 

fcsctors which llilde tht above described Illegal activities 

possible, the ut11ity should be held accountable f or ft s 

previous lack of effective and ethi ca I management. Thus, 

the COIIIIfssfon should make tne factual ffndfng thdt Gulf 

Power has been grossly mfsmanagea and ft ~ return on equity 

should be appropriately a<1justed downward to reflec t this 

ffndfng. 

Does this conclude your testimony? 

Yes. 

(End of Prefiled Oirect Testimxly l 
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1 Q (By Mr . Vandiver) Ms. Bass, could you 

2 provide a very brief suaaary ot your testimony, please? 

3 A Yes. My testi.Jiony describes events that have 

4 occurred at Gulf Power Company since the Company ' s last 

5 rate case in 1984. 

6 In •Y opinion, Gulf ha• suffered froa 

7 mismana9eaent for an extended period of time. Although 

8 Cult has worked hard in the recent past to eliminate 

9 many ot the factors which made ille9al activities 

10 possible, the Utility sho~ld be held accountable tor 

11 its previous lack of effective and ethical management . 

12 I believe the Commission should find that 

13 Gulf Power has been mismaneged, and i ts return on 

14 equity should be appropriate ly adjusted downward to 

15 reflect this tindin9. That concludes my suiiiJIIary. 

1 6 Q Were you previously sworn, Ms . bass? I 

17 neglected t o ask you . 

!. 8 A Yes, I was. 

19 MR. VANDIVER: Thank you. The witness is 

20 tendered tor cross. 

21 CROSS EXAMINATION 

22 BY MR . BURGESS: 

23 Q Ms. Bass, as I unders tand it, you are 

24 recommending &vme type o f adjust~ent to the allowed 

25 return on equity !or consideration of the lac k ot 
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1 quality aanageaent at Gulf Power, at least f o r some 

2 point in the past? 

3 

4 

A 

0 

Yes. 

Have you given much cons i derat ion t o 

5 quantifying that aaour.t ? 

6 No, I h ave not. 

7 0 Do you have any opinion as to what a 

8 reasonable amount would be? 

2996 

9 No, I don't. I think that's something that 

10 the Co~ission should de~ide based on their d ecision on 

11 if there was mismanagement or not. 

12 0 So you think that's someth i ng that the 

13 Commission should simply deal with within its own 

14 discre ,_ion? 

15 

16 

17 I have. 

18 

19 

Yes, I do. 

MR . BURGESS: Thank you , Ms . Bass , that 's all 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Mr . Holland ? 

KR - HOLLAND: Coaaiss ioners , before I begin 

20 my c ross examination, I would just l i ke to state for 

21 record that many of the questions that I'm about t o a s k 

22 and I think the answers that will be given will not be 

2J beneficia l to Gulf Power Company in other c ivil 

24 litigation ir. which ita engaged . But because of the 

25 nature of Ks . Bass' testiaony , I feel like the Compan) 
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1 is compelled to neverth~less ask those questions. And 

2 with that, I'd like t o p r oceed . 

CHAIRMAN WI LSON: All right . 

4 CROSS EXAMINATION 

5 BY MR. HOLLAND: 

6 

7 

B 

9 

10 

11 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

1\ 

Ka. Baaa, have you ever tired anyo ne? 

No, I bave not . 

Have you ever supervised or managed anybody? 

Yea, I ba ve. 

Can you tel l m4 where that was? 

I aupe rviaed indiv idual• when I worked as a~ 

12 Interna l Auditor with the Department of Health and 

13 Rehab i litative Services pr ior to coming to the 

14 co .. isaion. I n add ition, I owned my own business aud 

15 had empl oyee• that worked tor me there. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

2 2 

23 

the 

Q 

A 

Q 

Fuel 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

But you never fired any of tnose employees? 

No. I never had a reason to. 

Your curr e .nt position is Economic Analyst in 

Procurement Depar tment, is that correc't ? 

Yea , it is. 

Do you supervi se &nybody in that capacity? 

No, I do not. 

Do you have any special expertise in the area 

24 of aanagement? Have you ever testified about 

25 management, how management should conduct itsel f ? 
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I have never test ified how managPment should 

2 conduct itself . However, I have, in my j ob, been 

3 required to review management decia ions. 

4 Q I don't intend to drag this out, as has been 

5 done on at least one occasion in ~his procedding, but r 

6 would like to ask you: Is your test.imony today 

7 prese nted as an expart on management, or are you a fact 

B witness, as Kr. McWhirter wou ld define it, tor purposes 

9 of testifying before t.his Commission as to your 

10 findings regarding thosP !acts? 

11 A I believe I would quality it more as a fac t 

12 witness. However, I believe that I'm qualified, based 

13 o n my previous experience, to determine whether o r not 

14 certa i n actions I would consider them to be good 

15 management or bad aanageaent. 

16 Q Well, let me ask you this . I s that opinion a 

17 lay opin t on based on what you have reviewed, or i s i t. 

18 tendered tor purposes ot this Commission as an expe rt 

19 opinion? 

20 A I believe it would be tendered as a lay 

21 opinion. 

22 Q OkAy . ~ou would agree -- you stated that you 

23 had not fired anyone. That before doing s o , that you 

24 would wan~ to have a legitimate basis tor terminat i ng 

25 someone'• employment? 
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1 

2 

A 

Q 

Yea. I would. 

You would not want to be tired or tire 

3 someone baaed on rumor or inuendo, wou l d you? 

~o . I would not. 

You would want the facts? 

Definitely. 

2999 

4 

5 

6 

7 

A 

Q 

A 

Q Okay. And obtaining those facta would be a 

8 prudent, sound management practice, would it not? 

9 A Yes. It would. 

10 Q Although you've never done it -- and I 'm no·t 

11 casting aspersions on you, because I've never done it 

12 either. But tiring an employee is a very, very serious 

13 matter, is it not? 

14 A Yea. I would think so. 

15 Q And it can have a ma jor impact on someone's 

16 lite, being tired troa their position ·? 

17 

18 

A 

Q 

Yea. It could. 

A person's livelihood or career is something 

19 you don't want to make a mistake about, is it? 

20 

21 

A 

Q 

No. I don't believe so. 

In addition to the harm to the individua•, 

2.2 can't there be very serious consequences if the ac tio.n 

23 is unfounded? And by that, I mea n it can subject you 

24 or the Company to lawsuits for defamation, slander , 

25 wrongful termination -- the damages associated with it, 
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1 the legal expense s ana the expenses associated with 

2 rehi ring and back pay? 

3000 

3 A All those factors should be considered . But 

4 it also, ~ t you have the fac t s to tire someone and you 

5 feel justified in doing that and f'e~l you can 

6 substantiate it, then I believe it's sc~ething you 

7 should do . 

8 Considering te.l'llinating someone's livelihood 

9 is definitely a consideration . However, if' it's in the 

10 best interests of your organization to do that, I th i nk 

11 as a aanager you would look at your organization first 

12 and the impact it has on it. 

13 Q You would agree also, woula you not , that 

14 acc using soaeone ot aia~aantgement is a very serio~;s 

15 thing? 

16 

17 

A 

Q 

Yes. I do believe i t 's s er ious. 

And the consequences are serious and 

18 shouldn 't be done without knowledge of the facts ? 

19 

20 

A 

Q 

That's true. 

And you shouldn't base your opinion on thinqs 

21 that you read in the paper or what a single individual 

22 might say? 

23 A No. I don't think you should make your 

24 decision baaed on one thing. 

25 Q Ms . Bass, what 1 would like to do, and I'll 
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1 just ask you, have you ever heard the Che r okee saying 

2 about •walking a aile in someone ' & moccasins?" 

) 

4 

A 

Q 

so .. thinq siailar to that. 

Okay. And you reaaaber the Ray Stevens 

5 country song about, "Before you abuse, c r it i c ize and 

6 a ccuse, walk a aile in ay shoes.• Are you familiar 

7 with that song? 

8 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

Not real taailiar. 

Okay. 

COMMISSIONER GtNTER: Is that the one about 

11 where you qet the atheletes foot if you do that? 

12 (Laughter) 

1 3 Q (By Mr . Holland) ~at I would like for us to 

14 do 

15 

16 offer? 

1 7 

18 

19 offer ? 

20 

21 Q 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Are you tendering a job 

"4R. HOLLAND: What? 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Are you tendering a job 

MR. HOLLAND : To whoa? (Laughter) 

(By Mr. Holland) What I would like f or us to 

22 do for the next few minutes is t o walk in Mr . Mccrary's 

..!3 shoes in the management of Gulf Power Company a nd look 

24 very c loselr at the fac ta. 

25 You're aware , are you not , that Mr . McCra r y 
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1 came to Gulr Power in May of 198J? 

2 

J 

A 

Q 

Yea. I am. 

And you're also aware that he had been at 

4 Gulf Power approximately six aonths whe n he rec eived 

5 the anonymous letters respecting the thefts in the 

6 warehouse and the Kyle Croft's activit i es? 

7 

8 

A 

Q 

Yea. 

Were you aware of the fact that the first 

9 letter he received was on December 1Jth; and the second 

10 letter was Deceaber 15th; and that, in fact, on 

11 December tha 22nd, 198J, ho commenced a full-sc ale 

12 investigation that was conducted by Hr. Baker and Hr . 

1J Childers? 

14 I'll accept those dates subjec t t o c hec k . I 

15 believe those are correct. 

16 Q In your opinion, was it sound -- in your lay 

17 opinion, was it aound aanagement f o r him to have a c ted 

18 dec isively, given the information that had been 

19 provided hi• in those management -- in thos e anonymous 

20 letters? 

21 

22 

A 

Q 

Ask that again, please? 

In your opinion, was it sound manage~ent tor 

2J him to have acted to commence the investigation based 

24 upon receipt of those two anonymous letters? 

25 Yea. 
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l You would agr3e, would you not, that much ot 

2 what has been revealed ov~r the last rive or six years 

3 is as a result ot that investigation? And by that, I 

4 mean the Kyle Croft thefts; the bill-back s c hemes; 

5 thefts by other -ployeea; another area t .hat I want t o 

6 spend some ti .. on, 9ooda and sorv i<.:os to oxoc ut i ves; 

7 and the inventory shortage that you deal with in your 

8 testiaony? 

9 A I believe all those came out as a result ot 

10 the investigation. 

11 Q I believe you would also agree, would you 

12 not, that tho .. it ... which I described all occ urred 

13 fro• a period of 1978 to 19847 

14 A 

1 5 Q Do you have any evidence that the type o f 

16 activity -- and I do not mean by that , the a c tivity 

17 that's described in the plea agreement , I want t o talk 

18 about that later. But the activity thl't I outlined for 

19 you -- the thefts fro• the warehouse , the bill-bac x 

20 acheaes , thefts fro• other employees, goods and 

21 services to executives, or inventory prob lems -- have 

22 occurred since 19847 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

They have occurred since 1984 ? 

Have they occurred since 198 4 ? 

No . They occu.rred prior. 
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1 Q Okay. With respec t to the i nventory shortage 

2 that you desc ribe in your testimony at Page 2 and 3, do 

3 you reaeaber when the $2 aillion tigure that you 

4 mentioned was first aentioned in public? 

5 A I don't re.aeaber when , if lt was tirst -- it 

6 was probably first aentioned in a newspa~~r artic le 

7 that I read. However, it was also ment i oned again 

8 during a Staff-conducted deposit i on o t Carolyn Sirmon. 

9 And that would have been conduc ted, I believe, during 

10 the last rate case, or the one that was withdrawn . 

11 Q The newspaper article that you read, do you 

12 cecall if that was in fact related to t he t:-ial of Hr . 

13 

14 

15 

16 

Leeper? 

A 

Q 

A 

I don't reaeaber exac tly . 

Do you know when the trial of Kr . Leeper was? 

It would have been during the 1983-84 time 

17 traae, I believe. 

18 Q Kr. Leeper's tria l? ( Pause) 

19 Would you agree that it occurred 1n June ot 

20 1988? 

2 1 

22 

A 

Q 

Excuse ae, 1988 . 

And that was soae six years after the audit 

23 was conducted to Vhich Ms. Sirmons referred? 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

v -·. 

We re you there when the deposition was 
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1 conducted to which you referred? 

No. I was not. 

H.ave you read that deposit ion? 

Yea. I have . 

3005 

2 

) 

4 

s 

A 

Q 

A 

Q Would you agree that in that deposi tion that 

6 she had no docuaentation or support tor t .hat $2 million 

7 figure and it was just aoaething that she r emembered 

8 hearing? 

9 A I don't reaeaber if she said , it she said 

10 exactly she r ... abered hearing it, or if it was just a 

11 nuaber that she re .. abered. 

12 Q But she was asked specifically if s he had a ny 

13 docuaentation for that figure, did she -- wasn 't she? 

14 

15 

1 6 

17 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yea, she was. 

And she stated that she didn 't? 

She did. 

She didn't have any basis to support the 

18 figure, did she? 

19 A Hot that she presented during her deposition. 

20 Q What I'd like to do is deal for just a minute 

21 with the facta. In the 1981-1982 time per iod, tne 

22 warehouse was in fact undergoing renovation, wa s it 

23 no t? 

24 A I know it was in a state of diaarray during 

25 the tiae that the audit was --
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1 Q You're not aware of the renovations that were 

2 going on at the ti•e? 

3 A No. I was not. 

4 0 Okay. You're aware that some of the 

5 inventory had been •o,•ed out into the yard, are you 

6 not? 

7 

B 

A 

Q 

Yea . 

And you're aware or have you read Mt . 

9 Monroe's deposition that was taken about the same time 

10 as Ms. Siraons. Have you read that one? 

11 

12 

13 not? 

14 

15 

A 

Q 

A 

0 

I don't reaember if I have or not. 

That was conducted by the Commission, was it 

I couldn't say for sure . 

Are you fa.iliar with the facts surrounding 

16 the recount and why the Auditing Department , along with 

17 the head of the -- the 9U/ who was over th~ audits 

18 dec ided that a recount should take place? 

19 

20 

A 

Q 

Yea. 

And was that baaed upon -- or wasn't it based 

21 upon a determination that a number of items had not 

22 been counted? 

2 3 A I believe a number of items harl not been 

24 counted. So•• ~t the. had been mistagged . Some o t 

25 them were out in the yard and had not been counted . I 
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1 believa there were varioue reasons. 

2 Q And it was ::a. Sirmon's testimony , was it 

J not, that in the recount that some obso lete material 

4 and specifically in her depos ition, ;he referred to 

5 "obsolete transaission wire ' -- had been counted? 

6 

7 

A 

Q 

Yea . 

In making ~ count or an inventory, would 

B obsol•scence not be i .. aterial in terms of trying to 

9 balance the inventory to the books? 

10 A In what way? 

11 Q Okay. It it's in inventory, whether it's 

12 obsolete or not , it either ought t o be counted or it 

1 3 ought to be declared obsolete and rgmoved from the 

14 inventory, should it not? 

15 A Yea. It should be accounted for in some 

16 manner. 

17 Q You would agree, would you not, that i n her 

18 deposition , Carolyn Sirmon stated that she was not an 

19 engineer? 

20 

2 1 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Have you aade any effort to talk to the people 

22 who were involved in the audit who were engineers and 

23 who saw the wire? 

24 A No, I have not talked to anyone in tho audit 

25 team. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 Q 

3008 

Have you reviewed -- I think you said you had 

2 not reviewed Hr . Monroe's deposition, but have you 

3 reviewed Hr . oerting'a deposition? 

4 A Not that I -- I don't remembe: specifically. 

5 I read a number ot depositions. 

6 Q Are you taailiar with the testlmony from those 

7 two engineers, as well as statements aade by others who 

8 have stated that the transmission wire that was brought 

9 into the warehouse was, in tact, still in inventory and 

10 was stjll good, usable wire? 

11 A I bavo heard that stated. Whether I read tha t 

12 in a deposition or heard it through the course o f the 

13 bearinqa or during the last rate c ase , I don't rec a ll. 

14 Q Have you reviewed the Baxer-Childers report ? 

15 

16 

17 

18 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

In some detail? 

Yea . 

Did you note in there t he various schemes in 

19 which the individual who aade the allegation relative 

20 to the $2 ail l ion, t he allegat ions that she was 

21 involved heavily in those schemes? 

22 

23 

A 

0 

Yea, J have read that . 

Are you ta.iliar with t he allegation by at 

24 least one ' ndividual that she, i n tac t , attar the 

25 recount, participated i n the transfer of wire out of 
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1 inventory to line power? 

2 A I havo read that allegation . 

3 Q Did you aeek to dateraine the total value ot 

4 the inventory in the 1982 to 1983 time trame? 

5 A No, I did not, myaelt. 

6 Q Hove you read Mr. Fell's rob•Jttal testimony? 

7 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

A 

In thia docket? 

Yea . 

Yoa, I have. 

10 Q would you aqree that his testimony there was 

11 that the total inventory vaa $3.7 •illion and that a $2 

12 million shortage would have represented a 54\ shrinkage 

13 in inventory? 

14 A Yea, I ' ve read that. 

15 Q Do you think aoaebody would have noticed if 

16 that amount ot inventory was missing trom the 

17 warehouse? 

18 I would think someone would have noticed. 

19 Q You state in your testimony , and it is, in 

20 tact, the case, that it'a very ditticult to detect 

21 theft through an iuventory if there's co 11 us ion going 

22 on. 

23 

2 4 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

That ia correct. 

Have you read the 1983 aud it? 

The inventory audit? 
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A 

Yea. 

I don't believe so. 

3010 

l 

2 

3 0 You're not faailiar with the recommendations, 

4 then, that were aade in there regarding t t.e 

5 improveaents to be aade with respect t.o the inventory? 

6 A I'a faailiar with the iaprovementa that wPre 

7 reco .. ended, yes. 

8 0 And I think you note in your testimony that 

9 significant iaproveaenta have, in tact, been made? 

1') 

11 

A 

0 

Yea, that'• true. 

I want to turn tor just a tow minutes to the 

12 thntt of inventory by Kyle crott. And that's the 

13 second i te.a in your testimony at Pages 3 , 4 , I be 1 i eve, 

14 and through 5. You would aqree, would you not, that 

15 within a very short tiae attar the Saker-Childers 

16 investigation was commenced, that a certain amount o t 

1 7 the thefts were docuaented and that based upon 

1 f docuaentation, Hr. McCrary aade the dec ision to fire 

19 Kyle Croft? 

20 A Yes. 

t 1 

22 

23 

0 

A 

0 

And he did, in tact, tire him . did he not ? 

Yes, he did. 

And later, a few days later, Hr. McCrary on 

24 advice of coun~~l and in order t o attempt to avoid a 

25 lawsuit, agreed, in lieu of firing, t o allow Hr. Cr o tt 
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1 to resign? 

2 A I'm not sure that's the way I interpreted i t, 

3 "on advice ot c ounsel." It's ay understand i ng that Mr. 

4 Ho rton was allowed to talk to Mr. Crott a nd t o conv i nc e 

5 him -- or to -- he want to Mr. McCrary t o 4et 

6 peraiaaion to be allowed t o try to c onvince Mr. Croft 

7 to resign rather than being tired. 

B 0 Have you ever talked to Mr. Mc Crary or to Hr. 

9 Horton about the circumstances surrounding that 

10 decision? 

11 

12 

A 

0 

No, I have not. 

In your testimony, and spec ifically l believe 

13 this is at Lines 9 and 10, you state that t o 

14 demonstrate the Company's good faith , Mr . Horton signed 

15 a personal promissory note to Mr. Cro tt t or the amount 

16 that Mr. Croft had given a note t o the Company . Wha t 

17 is t .he basis tor you statement that that was d o ne i n 

1B order to demonstrate the Company's good taith? 

19 A "To demonstrate the Company's go od taith , " 

20 what I meant by that was that to e nsure that the 

21 Company, or to demonstrate that the Company would not 

22 sue Mr. Croft to p&y the promissory note , and he wou ld 

23 be forced to pay it, Mr. Horton s i gned a personal not e . 

24 So it the Company were to -- and as tar a s I know , Mr . 

2 5 Horton was acting on beh.alt ot the Compa ny . 
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1 0 What evidence do you have to support that 

2 statement? 

3 A The state•ents aade by che individu4l& in tho 

4 Cro!t l awsuit , the filings that they made rebutting the 

5 things that Mr . Croft said. 

6 0 Was Mr. McCrary aware that Mr. Horton had, in 

7 tact, signed a note back to Mr . Croft until the filing 

a ot the Kyle Croft lawsuit two years later? 

9 A I don't have anything to show that he was 

10 aware o! it. 

11 0 But you didn't ask Mr. Horton what his 

12 r a tionale was or why he might have done that? 

13 

14 

A 

0 

No. 

In you.r t estimony at Line 13, at Page 4 , you 

15 s ~ate that "Croft ia now receiving his pension.• Did 

16 you seek to deter.ine what the significance ot this 

17 was, or whether resignation or !iring would have any 

18 i mpact whatsoever on h is ent i tlement to a ~ension ? 

19 

20 

A 

0 

No , I did not. 

Is the stateaent here intended to mean that if 

21 he had been tired he would not have received his 

22 pension? 

23 A No. I t' s my understanding he would have 

24 received his pension because he wa s entitled t o it. 

2 5 0 But he had reached age 55 a t the time o! the 
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1 action and was entitled to a pension, is that correct? 

2 Yea. 

3 Q Okay. The strategy that had been put in place 

4 to attempt tG avoid a lawsuit didn't work, and Mr . 

5 filed suit, didn't he? 

6 No , not tor hia. 

7 Q But he did -- the strategy that the Company 

8 !employed in atteapting to avoid a lawsuit did not work? 

9 Oh, no. 

10 Q And Kr. Croft did tile a lawsuit? 

11 Yea, he did. 

12 Q I believe that vas in 1986? 

13 Yea. 

14 Q And would you agree that as a resul t the 

15 Company incurred substantial legal fees in defending 

16 itself and its officers against a suit that was 

17 ultimately found to be without merit? 

18 Yes . 

19 Q And the Coapany also filed a countersui t for 

20 damages, did they not? 

21 Yes, it did. 

22 Q Have you reviewed the suit in some detail 

2 ~ relative to the allegations of slander based on the 

2 4 Company's having reported the f iring in the press? 

25 (Pause) 
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Repeat your question, please . 

Have you revie~~d the suit that Hr. Crort 

3 tiled regarding the allegat ions ot slander based on t he 

4 Company having provided information to the press about 

s the tiring? Do you recall that in the lawsuit? 

6 A Yes, I recall that . 

7 Q It wasn't a •-cret that the Company had fired 

B Mr. croft, vas it? 

9 A No, it vas not . 

10 Q Let me diverge for j ust a minute. Hany or the 

11 allegations, and specifically with reference to the 

12 executive11 ' receipt ot goods and services, they came 

13 out of the Kyle Croft lawsuit, did they not? 

14 

15 

A 

0 

Yes, they did . 

And some of the.D came out or the 

16 Saker-Childers report? 

17 

18 

A 

Q 

Correct. 

Two of these allegations that earlier o r 

19 last week seem to be of some peculiar interest to the 

20 Staff , I want to ask you some questions about. And 

2 1 those two are Mr . Kickliter truck and Jake Horton's 

22 sprinkler system . First, with reference to Mr. 

2J Kickliter's truck, have you ever discussed the 

2 4 situation or the cirCUAStances surround i ng his truck 

25 with K.r . ~ickliter? 
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l A No, I have not. 

2 0 Have you re viewed in detail the Saker-Childers 

3 report? I think you earlier stated that you had . 

4 A Yea, I have. 

5 0 Would you agree that that report conta i ns a n 

6 appraiaal of the truck for $2,0507 

7 A Yea, it does. 

8 0 And it also contains proof that that is, in 

9 tact, what Mr. Kickliter paid tor it, does it not ? 

10 A Yea, it does. I believe the appraisal, or the 

11 indications in the report was the appraisal was done 

12 prior to the time that work was done on the truc k. 

13 0 Well , let me ask you about that . Doesn't the 

14 report also contain stateaents that Hr . Ki c kliter o n l y 

15 paid $750 tor the truck? I believe one employee cade 

16 that statement. 

17 MR. VANDIVER: If you're going to ask her 

18 about the report and specific things, I ' d request that 

19 you show it to her . ! aean, generally is Cine . 

20 0 (By Mr. Holland) Well, let me just ask you i n 

21 general: Do you recall a statement by one ot the 

22 employees in the report that Mr. Kickliter only paid 

2 3 $750 tor truck? 

24 

25 

A 

0 

Yes, I do. 

Do you alae recall the statement by o ne o t the 
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1 employees that the work vas done soae six months before 

2 he bought the truck? 

3 A I don't recall that ataement. 

4 Q Would you aqree that there are a number o f 

5 inconsistent atate .. nts tbat were aade by a number of 

6 people in that report, aany of whoa where later 

7 implicated in the various bill- back schemes that were 

B going on? Let ae just ask you this: Have you --

9 

10 

11 

A 

Q 

A 

Let me anawer that question. 

Okay. I'a aorry. 

There are conflic~ing atatements within the 

12 Baker-Childera' report. Soae of the statements do come 

13 from people wbo vera involved in variousd bill-back 

14 achemes. However, there'• a lot aore information in 

15 there that caae troa individuals who, based on their 

16 statsaents, had nothing to gain from what was going on 

17 at the general warehouse and the repair shop. And I 

18 don't believe they have been proven t o be involved ill 

19 t .hose schemes . 

20 Q Okay. But you have not discussed or talked or 

21 gotten the facta from the people who they implicated? 

22 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

A 

We have talked with Mr. Croft. 

Was that --

We have talked with someone who was not 

25 implicated in these achemea. 
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Waa the talk with Mr. Croft in his deposition 

2 that waa taken by the Starr, or have you talked to him 

3 

4 

5 

A 

Q 

It was during hia deposit1on taken hy Sta:f. 

I'm getting ahead ot myself, but have you 

6 reviewed all of Mr. Croft's depositions, all tive ot 

7 thea? 

8 A I'm not aure it I've looked at all five of 

9 them or not. 

10 Q Have you tried to go through and make some 

11 determination ot the nuaber of inconsistencies that are 

12 contained in hia teatiaony? 

13 A I recognize there are inconsistencies in Mr. 

14 Croft's depositions, and in pleadings that he tiled 

1~ with the court. I am not saying that everything that 

16 Mr. Croft said to us waa the absolute truth. I don't 

17 know that tor a tact. I do know that Mr. Croft -- or I 

18 believe Mr. Croft was guilty of mismanage~ent within 

19 the general warehouse. 

20 And I think, if I can go on for just a moment, 

21 I think most of your questions are leading to where I 

22 have said that Mr. McCrary is guilty of mismanagement 

23 himself. That waa not the intent of my testimony , the 

24 intent of my testimony to say that there was 

25 mismanagement within Gulf Power Company, without 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



3018 

1 looking specifically at one particular level. 

2 Q And then it would be your testimony that Mr. 

3 croft was guilty of aiaaanagement with respect to the 

4 warehouse, and it would not be your testimony then, I'm 

5 assuaing, that Mr. McCrary was guilty of mismanagement 

6 in havin9 fired Kr. croft? 

7 A No, I don't believe Mr. McCrary would be 

8 guilty of aisaanag ... nt tor firing Mr. croft. 

9 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Does the manage~ent ot the 

10 warehouse in any way play a part in your conclusion o! 

11 mis aanageaent at Gulf, of which Mr. McCrary is 

12 responsible? 

13 WITNESS BASS: I don't bel i eve I've dtated 

14 anywhere in ay testimony that I believe Mr. McCrary is 

15 specifically guilty of aisaana9ement himself. I 

16 believe he is ultimately responsible, being the 

17 President of the Company, but it's my belief that there 

18 is aisaanageaent -- there was mismanagement all the way 

19 to Gulf Power Company. Mr. Croft mismanaged. He was 

20 guilty ot it. People below him were guilty of it. 

21 People above him, I believe, were guilty of it. 

22 I believe Mr. Horton was guilty of 

23 misaanageaent, and I think that that's been documented, 

24 and I believe the Company has stated that Mr. Horton 

25 was guilty, or was responsible for the illegal ana 
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1 unethical activities that occurred in Gulf Power 

2 Company. So I believe there waa mismanagement at that 

3 level, too . 

4 I don't have any facts to say that Mr. 

5 McCrary knew everything that vas going on within Gulf 

6 Power Company and he specifically himself condoned it. 

7 But I'• saying that as president of the Company that 

8 he's responsible for the Coapany and the actions of his 

9 employees, especially the onea that are placed in top 

10 manageaent. 

11 CHAIRMAN WILSON: So the conclusion you draw 

12 is that there are these specific instances that 

13 happened on his watch? 

14 

15 

16 Q 

WITNESS BASS: Yea. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: All right. 

(By Mr. Holland) And if that's the case, Ms . 

17 Baas, the standard that ought to be applied is whether 

18 or not Mr. McCrary should have, in the normal course of 

19 his duties, been aware and taken action sooner with 

20 respec t to these area~ of mismanage.ment that you 

21 descr i bed? 

22 A Yea. I think that as the activities came t o 

23 light, they were dealt with . I believe that there were 

24 indications over a period of time that someth i ng vas 

25 wrong, ~1re vas going on within the Company. And, 
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1 very specifically, I think it was activities that Kr. 

2 Horton was involved in. I think that there were red 

3 flags shooting up that no one dealt with because ot Kr. 

4 Horton's p osition within the Company. And I don't 

5 think anyone within any company is above reasonable 

6 suspicion, if you vant to call it that. 

7 But if aoaeone'• naae continues to pop up in 

B illegal or unethical activitie•, I would think that's a 

9 pretty good indication that we need to do something 

10 specifically in that regard to look at it, regardless 

11 of who the per•on i•. And I don't think that they 

12 acted quick enough. And I think the actions that were 

13 taken were appropriate actions, but I don't think the 

14 actions were any aor e than any other company ~ould have 

15 ta"-en under the circuastances. 

16 I don't think Gulf Power went above and 

17 beyond. And I think that in a regulated environment 

lB the Company knew what a ctions would be expected of it 

19 and those actions were take.n. I'm not saying they were 

20 bad actions; they were good actions; t .hey have improved 

21 subst.antially. But I can't afford overcredit, aP. a 

22 word, f or vhat they did. 

23 Q I understand. And I agree with you that if 

24 the indications are there that illegal acts a r e being 

25 perpetrated, that •ome action is warranted, and th~t' s 
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1 what I want to ask you about. 

2 The first one I thil\k, and the one that just 

3 came up during the direct -- or the cross examination 

4 of Mr. Horton was with respect to his sprinkler system. 

5 And I think there is an allegation in there in the 

6 Baker-Childera that hia sprinkler system was paid tor 

7 by the Company in 1979. Are you familiar with that 

B allegation? 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

I've heard that allegation. 

Okay. You didn't talk to Mr. Horton about 

11 that allegation? 

12 A no, I did not. 

13 Q Are you aware that he, in tact, had invoices 

14 shoving that he paid tor his sprinkler system? 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

No, I didn ' t. 

If be did have those invoices, would t .hat 

17 give rise to suspicion that he was engaged in unethical 

lB or illegal activity? 

19 

20 

A 

Q 

No. 

At Page 6 ot your testimony, you discuss 

21 Gulf's business relationship with the vendors involved 

22 in the various schemes. 

2 3 Are you aware that •oat of these vendors were 

24 cooperating vith Gulf's own investigation as well as 

25 the govermv nt's inveatiqation during much of this 
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pedod? 

I was not awar' that they were. 

1 

2 

3 

A 

Q You're aware, are you not for the most part, 

4 that the vendors theaselves did not profit troa the 

5 sch ... s? 

6 A That's ay understanding. 

7 Q You would aqrea, would you not that, as wtth 

8 employees, th.at it's not the wisest course to terminate 

9 a vendor until the facts are known? 

10 

11 

A 

Q 

I aqree. 

Would you also aqree that Mr. croft was 

12 indicted on the West Florida landscaping scheme in 

13 February of 1988, although the scheae was perpetrated 

14 froa November of 1982 to February of 1983? 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Would you aqree that Mr. Brazwell was 

17 indicted on the Southern Scrap, Gulf Coaat Paving and 

18 Gradinq, West Coast La.ndacaping and REDCO on Apr 11 7th 

19 of 1988, and that those schemes were perpetrated 

20 January of '81 through Noveaber o! 19817 

21 A I'll accept your dates, subjec t to check, 

22 yes. 

23 Q At Page 5, I'a sorry, Page 5, Line 16 , you 

24 state that Laaar B.razwell was an owner ot REDCO? 

25 A Yes. 
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1 Q Do you have any evidence to support that? 

2 Did you read that in the nev~paper? 

3 A I don't believe ao. I'd have to check 

4 exa-=tly where I got this lnforJDAtion. I don't remember 

5 specifically. 

6 Q You don't have with you any •vidence, then, 

7 to support your atat ... nt that he was an owner? 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

I don't have it here wi th me, no. 

We don't have any either. 

10 Are you aware that Mr. Leeper sold his 

11 interest in REDCO in 1981 to the Esmark Corporation? 

12 

13 

A 

Q 

No, I did not know that. 

And that he, in tact, had no interest at all 

14 in REDCO when the acheae vas discovered? 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

I didn't know that. 

I want to aak you a taw questions about some 

17 vendor• that you didn't na•e in your testimony. 

18 You're aware, I believe, that iiiUIIediately 

19 upon disc overy ot the involvement ot Line Power in 

20 several ot the .. scheJMa at Gulf Power Company, Mr. 

21 McCrary terainated the Co•pany's relationship with Line 

22 Power? 

23 A I know their relationship with them was 

24 terainated. 

25 Q And are you also aware that the scheme with 
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1 respect tc the transfonaers occurred !rom 1977 t o 1981? 

2 

3 

4 

5 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

I know it was over an extended period. 

Prior to 1984. 

Yea, it was prior to 1984. 

Are you aware of the ext~nsive efforts that 

6 the Company went to to track down the 10 transformers 

7 that have a total value . I believe, or about $3,000? 

8 A I know they went to an effort to find them, 

9 yes . 

10 Q Those tra.neformers were, in tact, located all 

11 across the country, were ti1ey not? Some in california, 

12 Virqinia? 

13 A Yea, they were. 

14 Q And you're aware, are you not, ot the suit 

15 that is pending against Line Power? 

16 

17 

A 

0 

Yes. 

The four advertising agencies that are named 

18 in the plea agre ... nt, Appleyard Agencies, the Dick 

19 Leonard Group, H ... er ' Yates, and Design Assoc i ates. 

20 Gulf Power Coapany has, in fact, discontinued it6 

21 relationship with all four of those, has it not? 

22 

2 3 

A 

0 

Yes, it has. 

At Page 7, Line 15, of your testimony, you 

24 acknowledge aoae but not all or the corrective actions 

25 taken by aanagement and then you described the amnesty 
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1 proqraa. Is your description of the amnesty program 

2 just a state.ment of the facts surrounding that, or do 

3 you have some probl .. with Gulf's having instituted an 

4 amnesty program? 

5 A Just a stateaent of the !nets. 

6 Q At Page 13 -- I'a sorry, at Pag~ 8, Li ne 13, 

7 you raise a pote.ntial conflict of interest between Gulf 

8 and Mr. Tannehill, one of Gulf's directors, is that 

9 correct? 

10 A That's correct. It was a potential conflict 

11 of interast that was identified by the auditors. 

12 Q Ok.ay. You haven't established that a 

13 conflict, in !act, exists then? 

14 A No, I have not. And I think I state that 

15 further on. 

16 

17 

Q 

A 

I agree. 

Th.at I don't have the problem with the 

18 Company d~aling with affiliated companies or with a 

19 business that shares a colllllon off i cer. However, they 

20 should ensure that all transactions are substantiated 

21 and documented eo that the potential c onflict o f 

22 interest does not occ ur. 

2) Q You'vo never a e t or discussed th i s 

24 relationship with Mr. Tannenhill , have you? 

2 5 A ~.o, I did not. 
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Are you aware of the existence ot extenwive 

2 conflict disclosure foraa tliat are required t o be 

3 tilled out by the the SEC? 

4 

5 

6 

A 

0 

A 

Yea, I aa. 

Okay. And have you reviewed tho se? 

I have looked at thea before . no t 

7 specifically in this instance, because I didn ' t 

8 specifically have a problea with thb. Other than that 

9 it occurred, the auditors during their last audit 

10 raised it as a disclosure, and I aiaply expressed an 

11 opinion on it. 

12 0 At Page 10, top ot that page, you discuss the 

13 reco ... nded di .. iaaal of Mr. Horton. 

14 

15 

A 

0 

Yes. 

And I believe you've agreed earlier on 

16 several occasions th.at you should have hard evidence 

17 before you before you aove to diaaiaa an individual ? 

18 

19 

A 

0 

Yes. 

can you tell •• what hard evidence Mr. 

20 McCrary had that Mr. Horton had committed an i l legal or 

21 unethical act until he saw the all Appleyard ledger in 

22 August or Septeaber of 19887 

23 

24 

A 

0 

I'a sorry, Mr. Holland, will you repeat that? 

Yea. Can you tell ae what hard ev i dence Mr . 

25 McCrary ha~ that Jake Horton had co~itted an illegal 
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1 or unethical act until he saw the Appleyard ledger in 

2 August or September of 19~8? 

3 

4 

A 

Q 

I don't know it he had any. 

You agree, do you not, that Mr. McCrary does 

5 not, under the Company'• bylaws, h~ve the authority to 

6 hire or tire an officer ot the Company? 

7 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

A 

That'• my understanding. 

That'• a prerogative of the Board, is it not? 

Yes, it is. 

10 Q You would agree alao, I believe, that 

11 iJUiediately upon seeing tl,e Appleyard ledger, Mr . 

12 McCrary mandated that an audit of all advertising 

13 accounts be performed? 

14 Yea. 

15 Q I'm sure you have also, and it's part of the 

16 evidence, part of the record in this case, reviewed the 

17 various audita that were performed by Mr . Fell, as well 

18 as the minutes of the various Audit committee meetings? 

19 

20 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Have you interviewed any of the members of 

21 the Audit Committee? 

22 

23 

A 

0 

No, I have not. 

I don't want to spend a lot of time on this 

24 because the Company's and government's investigation 

25 parallel each other; but at the top of Page 10, or at 
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1 Page 10, Line 19, you describe the spare parts 

2 investigation aa having included Gulf Power Company? 

3 A I think it vas expanded to include them or 

4 they vera brought into as being part or The Southern 

5 Company. 

6 Q Have you read the affidavit -- I'm sorry, 

7 were you fini•hed? 

8 A Ye8. 

9 Q Have you read the affidavit that vas, in 

10 fact, the in•tigator, or precipitated the investigation 

11 of the southern Coapanies and the Operating Companies, 

12 with re•pect to •pare parts? 

13 A Ye•. I have. 

14 Q You would aqree, would you not, that it 

15 •tatea in that affidavit that Gulf Power company is, in 

16 fact, properly accounting for spare parts? 

17 

18 

A 

Q 

Yea. 

And you're aware, are you not , that the IRS 

19 gave Gulf Power a clean bill in ita accounting 

20 treataant of spare parts? 

21 

22 

A 

Q 

Yea. 

You also are aware, are you not , that the 

23 qovernae.nt ha• reca.ntly dropped ita investigation of 

24 Georgia Power and the Southam Company ~ith respect to 

25 the accounting treataent of spare parts? 
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I read that in the newspapers. 

Okay. Do you hav~ any evidence or do you 

3 know what bases there was to ~~pport the allegations 

4 with respect to two sets of books at Georgia Power 

5 Company, or an ott-the-books scheme? 

6 A Only what I've read in the initial document 

7 that started the investiqation, the grand jury 

8 investigation. 

9 Q At Page 10 and 11 of your testimony, you 

10 describe the extensive qrand jury investiqation Gulf 

1~ Power Company went through. ¥ou would aqree, I 

12 believe, that the investigation was, in !act, 

13 extensive? 

14 

15 

A 

Q 

Yes. I believe it was. 

There were a aultitude of Gulf Power 

16 employees a.nd others who attended and testified before 

17 that qrand jury, were there not? 

Yea. 18 

19 

A 

Q Would you aqree that the qrand j ury 

20 investiqation covered not only those matters t hat are 

21 contained in your testimony but a variety of other 

22 matters? 

23 A I can't speak to all that the grand jury 

24 investigated. 

25 Q Okay. It did go back, did it not, to the 
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) A To the extent that those were inc luded in the 

4 indictaenta, yes, or the pleas. 

5 Q Was there anythinq that's containt>d in the 

6 Baker-Childera Report that was containeo! .!.~ the plea 

7 agreement? (Pause) 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

No. I don't believe there wa s . 

Before we get into the details or the 

10 investigation, at Page 15, Line 25, you state that 

11 after you've acknowledged that collusion and management 

12 override can circuavent and render ineffective even the 

13 strictest of internal controls -- and you still agree 

14 that that's the caRe? 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

Yea. 

You state that, •The inability of Gulr 

17 manageaenta to discover and correct these overt illegal 

18 actions leads me to believe that the cor~on.•te culture 

19 was such that the eaployees bel ieved that these types 

20 of illegal actions were, at the least , condoned by top 

21 

22 teatiaony? 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

Is that an accurate statement or )OUr 

Yea. It is. 

You're not taking issue in your testimony 

25 with our int rnal controls, are you? ¥ou•re tak in~ 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMI SSI ON 



3031 

1 is•ue with our having failed to detect --

Yea. 

-- the overt acta? 

2 

3 

4 

A 

Q 

A Failed to detect within a reaaonable period 

5 of ti ... 

6 Q Okay. What -ploy••• have you detel"llined 

7 believed that the illegal acta were condone~ by top 

8 manag ... nt? 

9 A Soae of the atat ... nta aade by the 

10 individual• in the Bake.r-Childera report, wher e they 

11 indicated that they were juat to go along with what was 

12 going on, not to aay anything to anyone about it, they 

13 juat were expected to do theae thinga. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

That vera prior to 1984 ? 

Yea. That waa prior to 1984 . 

How about aince 1984? 

I don't bave anything apec itic that I could 

18 offer you, other than ay opinion that act i vities that 

19 go on tor an extended period ot tiae in an 

20 organization, it'• just extreaely hard tor me t o 

21 believe that no one ever aaya anything to anybody. 

22 Q You've atated and would agree, though, that 

23 when there'• colluaion, it'• difficult to detect, would 

24 you not? 

25 A Yea. It ia. 
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rind, specifically, with respect to the plea 

2 agreeaent and the Appleyar1 account, you would aqr&e 

3 that, in that case, the only two people named or in any 

4 way insinuated had any knowledge of what was going on 

5 there are Ray Yarborough and Jake Ho~ton? 

6 A Yea. 

7 Q And with respect to Hi-er and Yates -- Kr. 

8 Yates and Mr. Horton? 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

Yea. 

And with r-pect to Design Associates, Ray 

11 Howell and Mr. Horton? 

12 

13 

A 

Q 

Yea. 

And with respect to Dick Leonard, Doug 

14 Knowles and Mr. Horton? 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

Yea. 

You would agree, would you not, that every 

17 one ot the overt acts that are contained in that 

18 testiaony involve Mr. Horton, the vendor, and in only 

19 two of the, with respect to two of the vendors, another 

20 employee of Gulf Power Company? 

21 

22 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

You would agree, would you not, that the 

23 government's investigation began with the FBI in early 

24 1985? 

25 A Yes. 
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And that the IRS began an investigation in 

2 earnest soaetiae in 1986? 

3 A They began an invest igation in 1986. 

4 0 Okay. Would you agree t~dt since those 

5 investigations began that Gulf Power Company has been 

6 under what I would deac ribe as a relent less and a lmost 

7 nonstop inveatigation? 

8 

9 

A 

0 

The investigations have been continuous, yea. 

You would agree also, would you not, that the 

10 govern.ent, the FBI and the Internal Revenue Service, 

11 through the subpoena powe~ of tho u.s. Attorney and the 

12 Grand Jury, can obtain stateaents from documents, or 

13 can obtain docuae.nts and state.aents ~rom witnesses that 

14 Gult Power Company does not h a ve the power to obtain? 

15 

16 know. 

17 

18 

19 

A 

0 

A 

0 

I don't think I can answer thdt. I don't 

Does Gulf Power Co111pany have subpoena power? 

I don't believe so, no. 

Were you aware that the government in \986, 

20 in fact, requested that we stop discussing matters 

21 related to their investigation with our employees? 

22 A No. I did not know that. 

23 0 You would agree, would you not, that even 

24 with all the powers of the investigation , or 

25 investigative powers that were at their disposal, that 
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1 the governaent did not and waa not ready to aove 

2 !orward, with respect to the iteaa contained in the 

3 plea agreaaent until the au..er o! '89? 

A I can't speak to what the government ' s i ntent 

5 waa or what they planned to do. 

6 Q They had not indicted us at that tiae , had 

7 they? 

8 A There were no indictaenta as o! that time, 

9 no. 

10 Q Okay, and the plea agreeaent, in !act, took 

11 place in October ot '89, did it not? 

12 

13 

A 

0 

Yea. 

You would agree also, would you not, that the 

14 governaent waa unable to ascertain the tactual basis t o 

15 support the overt acta relating to Himmer and Yates and 

16 the Dick Leonard group, only after Mr. Horton had died 

17 in the plane crash? 

18 A It's •Y underst.anding !rom the plea 

.1.9 agreement. 

20 Q Were you aware that in late 1986 or early 

21 19~7, Mr. Horton waa notified by the Internal Revenue 

22 Service that he was a target for the Grand Jut·y 

23 investigation? 

24 

25 

A 

0 

I wee not aware of that . 

Wo•· ':.d you au.apect that an individual who wa s 
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1 under investigation by the Internal Revenue Service and 

2 the FB I , for the period 1986 through 1989, would hav e 

3 engaged in the activity, the overt acts, that are 

4 described in the plea agreement? 

5 If you were under that type ot scrutiny, 

6 would you be doing the kinds of things that Yr. Horton 

7 was apparently doing? 

8 A I personally wouldn't, but I can't speak to 

9 what Mr. Horton aay or aay not do. 

10 Q Would you think that a rational individual 

11 would, under those circuaatances, have engaged in that 

12 type ot activity, given the ~act that he was under 

13 intense investigation by the government? 

14 A Generally, I would not expect a rational 

15 pe r son to do that, no. 

16 Q Okay. Looking specifically at the plea 

17 aqreement, I think you state in your testimony that the 

18 amount involved in Count One is $22,850 and in Count 

19 Two, $73,585.59. And if ay math is correct, the total 

20 was about $96,500. Does that sound accurate? 

21 A That sounds about right. 

22 Q To your knowledge, have any or the overt acts 

23 contained in the plea agreeaent caused the lights to go 

24 out or iapacted the reliability of Gulf's service? 

25 A No. I don't believe it's i mpacted its 
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1 reliability. 

2 0 Have you aade any determination or any 

3 assessment of the iapact of the overt acts on the rates 

4 that are to be set in this rate case? Whether there's 

5 been any impact at all? 

6 A No. I don't believe any ot these amounts 

7 impact the current rate case. These ara all historical 

8 amounts. 

9 0 Okay. And you're aware , are you not, that 

10 the Commission has a docket open t o make a 

11 determination whether or not there was any impact on 

12 these overt acts on the ratepayers? 

13 

14 

A 

0 

Yes. I'• aware of the docket. 

And you're also aware that Gulf Power Company 

15 has agreed, on a number of occasions, that i f there was 

16 an impact that it will refund those dollars? 

17 

18 

A 

0 

Yes. 

I would assume, given your position, that 

19 you're aware that Gulf's rates are among the lowest in 

20 the State of Florida and in the southeast? 

21 

22 

A 

0 

Yes. 

And you're also aware, are you not -- or do 

23 you have any question about the reliability of Gulf 

~4 Power Company? 

25 A No I don't. 
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2 

Q 

A 

Have you got tbe plea agreement with you? 

Yea. 

3 Q Would you turn, please, to Page 10 ot the 

4 stateaent of facta? 

5 co .. iaaionera, that'• an exhibit, I'm not 

6 sure what the nuaber is. 

7 CHAIRMAN WILSON: 413. 

8 KR. HOLLAND: 413? 

3037 

9 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Are you talking about Page 

10 10 marked at the bottoa? 

lt KR. HOLLAND: Yea, air. I don't have the 

12 record copy. I'a looking at the statement ot !acts, 

13 Page 10, as the docuaent was tiled with the court. 

14 CHAIRMAN WILSON: All right. 

1 5 Q (By Mr. Holland) Would you read that first 

16 full paragraph that begins, "The government also 

17 submits•? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Wait a minute. 

WITNESS BASS: We're not on the same page. 

KR. HOLLAND: Okay, let me find 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: What are you on? 

KR. HOLLAND: I'a on the Government's 

23 Statement of Pacta. And at the bottom ot the page , 

24 typed in, •Page 10. • Not the stamped what do they 

25 call that, the Br ::es system? 
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1 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Whatever . And what 

2 paraqraph? 

3 KR. HOLLAND: The •iddle paraqraph, t~e tirat 

4 full paraqraph that beqirua, •Til• qovernlllent also 

5 aubJlita.• 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: All riqht . 6 

7 MR. HOLLAND: Would you read that into the 

8 record, please? 

9 

10 that. 

11 

12 

WITNESS BASS: I'• sorry, I haven't found 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Do you have the exhibit ? 

WITNESS BASS: No, I do not have the exhibit. 

l3 KR. Holland, do you have the paqe number from 

14 the oriqinal plea aqre ... nt? 

15 KR. STONE: It's Paqe 49 tor everyone e l se 

16 that's lookinq at the record copy, 49 ot 58. 

17 

18 Q 

19 paraqraph? 

20 A 

WITNESS BASS: I found it . 

(By Mr. Holland) Would you read tnat aiddle 

•The qovarn.ent also aubaita to this court 

21 that Gulf Power Coapany throuqh ito representatives, 

22 Board of Directors, and the majority of its employees, 

23 haa cooperated in thia inveatiqation. The President of 

24 Gulf Power Coapany and the Board ot Directo rs have 

25 taken positive atepa to put a atop to the illeqal 
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1 activities occurring within the Coapany." 

2 Q Okay. And on tbe next page, the 

3 next-to-the-last paragraph that t~gina, "In October 

4 1988"? 

3039 

5 A •tn October 1988, the Audit Committee of the 

6 Board of Directors of Gulf Powe.r Coapany began ita ovn 

7 internal investigation of political contributions based 

8 on the inforaation which had developed over the 

9 preceding aonths. 

10 Nuae.roua interviews ware conducted within the 

11 eoapany and the Auditing Departaent , under the 

12 direction of Director of Auditing and Security, George 

13 Fell. An in-depth interview was conducted, a bill was 

14 subaitted to the Company by certain outside vendors, 

15 particularly advortiainq agencies.• 

16 Q Okay, and finally on the last page, Psge 13, 

17 if you would read the first and second paragraphs , the 

18 first one that begins, "Cult Power Company has 

19 suffered"? 

20 A "Gulf Power Coapany has suffered fro• the 

21 dishonesty of the Senior Executive Vi ce President, and 

22 certain others who acted under his direc tion , without 

23 the approval of the Board of Direc tors of Gulf Power 

24 Coapany . Gulf Power Co•pany, itself , by ita ovn 

25 initiative has substantially contributed to the 
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1 investigation and the uncovering of the wrongdoi ng by 

2 this now deceased Senior Vice President and a handful 

3 o f other eaployees who worked under him . 

4 Throughout this investigation , Gulf Power 

5 Company's Auditing Oepartaent, its Security Department , 

6 its managers, ita e•ployees 4nd ita counsel have 

7 cooperated and have agreed to continue t o cooperate 

8 with the IRS investigators, the Grand Jury and the 

9 offices ot the United States Attorney for the Northern 

10 District of Georgia and the Northern District of 

11 Florida and the Tax Division of the Department of 

12 Justice, in a concerted efforts to r oot out the 

13 unlawfu l actions which have resulted in this c riminal 

14 information.• 

15 Q Ms . Baas, would you agree that given the 

16 length, tour or five years, and the depth of the 

17 i nvestigation that was conducted by the government, 

18 that they are, in fact, in a better position t han you 

19 are to assess the merit of the ac~ions taken by Gulf 's 

20 management? 

2 1 I think they are judging the merits of the 

22 actions taken after-the-fact. 

23 

2 4 

Q 

A 

Isn't that, in tact, what you're doing? 

I'm loc king at the events that occurr ed over 

25 a period of time anQ the actions that were taken and 
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1 the actions that were not taken aa baaed on the 

2 inforaation tha~ the aanaqeaent had at the time . 

3 Q Ia that any ditferent the.• vhat the 

4 qovernment was doinq in their asaesament? 

3041 

5 I think the qovernaent ia coapliaen~ing Gulf 

6 Power on its cooperation. 

7 Q Well , let .. aak you a.bout that. Do they 

a not, in fact , at a nuaber of pagea, specifically Page 

9 10, and I believe in other areas where you read, 

10 document the fact that Gulf Power took affirmative 

11 stepa to root out -- I believe they say, •a conc erted 

12 effort to root out the unlawful actiona,• whic h are a 

13 part ot the p l ea aqreeaent? That'• on Page 13. 

14 A I think Gulf Power haa aade an effort to do 

15 that. 

1 6 Q The y don't aake any finding in this plea 

17 agreeaent tha t Gulf Power Coapany was aoaehow negl i gent 

18 or didn't do aoaething that it should have aone in 

19 order to disc over the wrongdoing? Do you know any 

20 allegation of that type that 's contained in this plea 

21 aqreeaent? 

22 A I don't think they are speaking to what Gulf 

23 Power did pJior to the investigations or while the 

24 investigations were going on. 

25 Q They' .. • not speaki ng t o activities that Gult 
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1 Power --

2 They're saying once theae activitiea were 

3 uncovered . or there waa an indication ot some ot the 

4 activities, Gulf Power cooperated in the investigation 

5 and haa taken action• to keep theae activit i es trom 

6 occurring again. 

7 Q But you can't point aa, and you stated 

B earlier that you can't point me to any specific thing 

9 that the management of Gulf Power Company should have 

10 seen or detected that would have indicated earlier than 

11 the;· were that the illegal activities were going on? 

12 A I think there vere indications, beginning in 

13 1984 with the Kyle croft thefts, there were other 

14 things that ca .. up, I believe, that Mr. McCrary 

15 testified to last veek on the contribution by Mr. 

16 Gravea. I think Mr. Horton'• naae was mentioned. I 

17 know Kr. Horton ' s na•• was mentioned in the Baker 

18 Childers. 

19 Q But we've established that just because 

20 someone'& name ia aentioned that we ought to try to 

21 deal with the facta, and, in tact, seek to ascertain 

22 whether the allegations are, in tact, true. 

23 Yes. I don't think you should come to a 

24 c onclusion based on a one-time occurrenc e, no. 

25 Q Let ae ask you spec ifically with respect to 
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the Bill Graves aatter, you did not talk to Hr. Horton 

t o ascer tain his version of what happe.ned with respect 

to that? 

A No, I did not. 

Q Have you talked to either of the other two 

employees who were involved? 

A No, I haven't. 

Q Is it your testiaony then, without havinq 

done that, that Mr. Horton aoaehow acted improperly and 

that Mr . McCrary should have, as a result ot that, 

knoWT". that there vas soae type ot iaproper or illeqal 

act occurring? 

A No, that's not ay testiaony. 

Q Are you , in fact, aware of Mr. McCrary's 

reaction when he found out, two years later, that the 

Company had, in fact, reimbursed Mr. Graves rather than 

Mr. Horton havinq done so? 

A Only to the extent ot what he testified here. 

Q Have you read the aemo with Mr. Scarbrough 

dated Novelllber 13, 1986, vhe.rein Mr. McCrary 1118t with 

all of the executives and very clearly indicated to 

them that he would not tolerate any type ot pressure on 

vendors ot Gulf Power Coapany? 

A No, I have not read that aemo. 

MR. HOLLAND: That's all I have, 
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1 Commissioners. 

2 CHAIRMAN WILSON: All right. We're going to 

3 break for lunch and co .. back and see if there are any 

4 questions or redirect. 

5 

6 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: What tiae? 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: We' 11 coae back at ,_bot!t 

7 ten minutes after one. 

8 (Thereupon lunch recaas vas taken at 12:20 p.m.) 

9 - - - - -

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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